DUE TO THE COVID-19
CONSIDERATIONS, A VIRTUAL
MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED WITH
COUNTY COUNCIL AND ELECTRONIC
VIRTUAL ACCESS FOR THE PUBLIC

Watch Live via YouTube at:
https: / /www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm ggXClIA

To Participate in Public Comment, please email to
comments@jaspercountysc.gov and or mail to Attn: Clerk to Council P.O.
Box 1149 Ridgeland, SC 29936. To be called for public Comment, please
email at the mentioned email address. *Public Comments must be
submitted by Tuesday, February 22, 2022, at 1:00pm.*

To participate in a Public Hearing, you may either email to
comments@jaspercountysc.gov or request via email or phone by 1:00pm

on Tuesday, February 22, 2022, to speak via telephone at the Virtual
Council Meeting.

Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website
WWW.jaspercountysc.gov

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696



JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Tuesday, February 22, 2022
AGENDA

5:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order by Chairperson

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.
**In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and

furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification**

II. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,
discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or
the appointment of a person to a public body - Emergency Services; Aeronautics Commission

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to a
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim - Levy Volunteer Fire Dept.;
Register of Deeds Software; Election Matters

(4) Discussion regarding the development of security personnel or devices: Security Measures

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision
of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in
the area served by a public body ~Jasper Ocean Terminal (JOT); Project Thunderbolt; Prospect

Update

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY
RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS.
PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION.

1
Agenda —02.22.2022



6:00 P.M.

IlIl. Return to Open Session
IV. Pledge of Allegiance
V. Invocation
VI. Approval of Agenda
VIl. Approval of the Minutes of 01.31.2022:

VIII. Presentation / Public Hearing:

A: Jessica Dailey - Public Hearing and Presentation on the Annual Needs Assessment for Jasper
County

IX.  Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 any citizen of the County may sign to speak before
the Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be
limited to three (3) minutes and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.

*Please submit Public Comments via email at comments@jaspercountysc.gov or via US Mail at Attention:
Clerk to Council P.O. Box 1149 Ridgeland, SC 29936. If you would like to be contacted by phone during Qpen
Floor, please email your name, address and phone number to the email address listed above.

X. Resolutions:

A: David Tedder - Resolution # R2022-04 Authorizing, Under Certain Conditions, The
Execution and Delivery by Jasper County, South Carolina of a Fee In Lieu Of Tax Agreement
with CP Hardeeville, LLC with respect to an Industrial Project in the County whereby the
Project would be subject to payment of Certain Fees In Lieu Of Taxes, and whereby CP
Hardeeville, LLC will be provided Certain Credits against Fee Payments in Reimbursement
Of Investment in Related Qualified Infrastructure; and Providing For Related Matters.

B: David Tedder - Resolution # R2022-05 Authorizing, Under Certain Conditions, The
Execution and Delivery by Jasper County, South Carolina of A Fee In Lieu Of Tax Agreement
with SDKM Commerce, LLC with respect to an Industrial Project in the County whereby
the Project would be subject to payment of Certain Fees In Lieu Of Taxes, and whereby
SDKM Commerce, LLC will be provided Certain Credits against Fee Payments in

Reimbursement Of Investment in Related Qualified Infrastructure; and Providing for
Related Matters.

XI. Ordinances:

A: David Tedder - Public Hearing and 3rd Reading of Ordinance # 02022-01_an Ordinance to
Reapportion and Redistrict the Four (4) Election Districts for the election of Jasper County
Council Members based upon the 2020 Decennial Census in order that the population of such
Districts shall comply with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 and South Carolina Law.

2
Agenda —02.22.2022



XIL

B: David Tedder -Public Hearing and 3 Reading of Ordinance # 2021-29 authorizing the
execution and delivery of a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between CP Hardeeville, LLC
(formerly known to the County as “Project Mandolin”) (the “Company”) and Jasper County,
whereby Jasper County will enter into a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement with the Company and
providing for payment by the Company of certain Fees-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes; providing for
Special Source Revenue Credits in connection with such Agreement; providing for the allocation of
Fees-In-Lieu of Taxes payable under the Agreement for the establishment of a Multi-County
Industrial /Business Park; and other matters relating thereto.

C: David Tedder -Public Hearing and 3 Reading of Ordinance # 2021-30 authorizing the
execution and delivery of a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between SDKM Commerce, LLC
(formerly known to the County as “Project Dolphin”) (the “Company”) and Jasper County, whereby
Jasper County will enter into a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement with the Company and providing for
payment by the Company of certain Fees-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes; providing for Special Source
Revenue Credits in connection with such Agreement; providing for the allocation of Fees-In-Lieu of
Taxes payable under the agreement for the establishment of a Multi-County Industrial/Business
Park; and other matters relating thereto.

D: Lisa Wagner -Public Hearing of an Ordinance to adopt Planned Development
District Zoning for two tracts of land consisting of approximately 226.94 acres, bearing
Jasper County Tax Map Numbers 041-00-02-010 and 041-00-02-012 and known as 95
Logistics Center.

E: David Tedder - Public Hearing of an Ordinance approving a Development Agreement
for 95 Logistics Center pursuant to the South Carolina Local Government Development
Agreement Act and Article IV, Title 20 of the Code of Ordinances of Jasper County and

authorizing the Chairman of Jasper County Council to execute said Development
Agreement.

F: Lisa Wagner - Public Hearing and 21 Reading of Ordinance #_02022-02 to amend the
Official Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer a 26.22-acre portion of property, as
depicted on the attached plat, and bearing Jasper County Tax Map Number 071-00-00-009,
from the Rural Preservation Zone to the Resource Extraction on the Jasper County Official
Zoning Map.

New Business:

A: Danny Lucas - Appointments to the jasper County Aeronautics Commission as per Sections
2-212 and 2-78 of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances.

B: Danny Lucas -Ridgeland - Claude Dean Airport Terminal / Fixed Based Operations (FBO)
Furnishings.

C: Danny Lucas - Ridgeland - Claude Dean Airport Fiber Optic Infrastructure Phase I and Phase
IL.

D: Coroner Willie Aiken - Discussion of the Coroner’s Office

3
Agenda ~ 02.22.2022



XIIl. Old Business:
A: Chief Russell Wells - COVID update
X1V. Council Members Comments

XV. Administrator’s Report

XVI. Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda Item
IL

XVII. Adjourn
*Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive

session.
In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website at
least 24 hours prior to the meeting. A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted at the

meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.

4
Agenda -02.22.2022



AGENDA ITEM:
VII

Approval of the Minutes



JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

VIRTUAL WORKSHOP

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

January 31, 2022

MINUTES

Officials Present: Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Vice Chairman Dr. Curtis Brantley
Councilman L. Martin Sauls, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins and Councilman John Kemp.

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda H. Simmons,
County Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, DC Darran Vaughn, BC Lucas
(Training), BC Smith (Fleet & Station Maintenance), BC Barton (Quartermaster / Logistics),
and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.

Also Present:
The following people were also present at this Workshop:

Michael Saxon

Aaron Saxon

Carol Lancaster

Pastor Deloris Young

Brian Barton

jodie Borger - Legal Counsel for LVFD

Lawrence Flynn - Legal Counsel for Jasper County
Sara Weathers

Chairwoman Clark called the workshop to order at 5:30PM, Chairwoman Clark asked the Clerk to
Council to read the Report of Compliance to the Freedom of Information Act. Ms. Simmons, Clerk to
Council read the Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Kemp and the Invocation was given by Vice Chairman
Dr. Brantley. County Attorney Mr. Tedder introduced Mr. Lawrence Flynn.

Discussion with the Levy Volunteer Fire Department Board of Directors

Attending Board Members from the Levy Volunteer Fire Department were introduced. Mr. Flynn gave
a presentation and asked for questions and provided answers to the questions he was presented with.
A plan was made at the end for Mr. Flynn to issue a memo at a future date. Council also discussed the
Gillisonville and Grays Voting Precincts regarding location and compliance.

M —01.31.2022
1



Adjourn:

Motion to adjourn: Councilman Sauls
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 6:44 pm.

Respectfully submitted: Approved:

Wanda H. Simmons Barbara B. Clark

Clerk to Council Chairwoman
M—-01.31.2022

2



AGENDA ITEM:
VIII

Presen trll( O / lr’lljbllll( H ear g

Itern A



2022
Community Development

Block Grant (CDBG)

Program Year: April 1,2022 — March 31, 2023

Community and Fconomic Development

mﬁozmﬁpoﬁbm ﬁ@oE@ mﬁ.msm%mbwnm Communities

W OWCoOunty VCO M,Uw org




FAIR HOUSING IS THE LLAW

Also, as a part of the requirements of the program, the
locality is expected to undertake activities that
promote Fair Housing. Title VIll of the Civil Rights of

1968 stipulates that we all have the right to be treated
fairly regardless of our

In the sale and rental of housing
In residential real estate transactions
In the provision of brokerage services




If you believe that you have been a victim of
discriminatory housing practices, you have
avenues by which the matter can be investigated.

Jasper County and Lowcountry Council of
Governments are committed to Fair Housing.
For more information contact
LCOG at




The SC CDBG Program is designed to provide
assistance to units of local government in
iImproving economic opportunities and meeting
community revitalization needs, particularly for

persons of low and moderate income (LMI).




LMI QUALIFIED

Jasper MFI ‘_ N w L. m

$48,000
Person Person Person Person Person

80%

. 30,250 $34,600 $38,900 $43,200 $46,700
Limits 5 5 5 $ $

Community and Economic Development
Strengthening People Strengthening Communities




The CDBG program has been funded
through the State since 1982 by the US
Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) under Title | of the

Housing Community Development Act of
1974 as amended (Title ).




The Annual allocation from HUD for the
program is administered by the

S C Department of Commerce —

Division of Grant Administration.

SC has been allotted approximately
$20,158,757 in CDBG funds for 2022.




GRANT PROGRAM CATEGORIES

There are three broad grant program
categories:

« Community Development

 Business Development
* Regional Planning

The Community Development Program is further
broken down into several subcategories to address

infrastructure, community facilities, and neighborhood
priorities as follows:




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE
$11,353,995

COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT
$3,000,000

APPLICATION REQUEST March 14,2022
APPLICATION DEADLINE April 15, 2022

WATER

APPLICATION REQUEST August 15, 2022
APPLICATION DEADLINE September 16, 2022

SEWER

BROWNFIELD PROJECTS/DEMOLITION OBSOLETE
BUILDINGS

DRAINAGE

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS*

ROADS

PLANNING FOR REGIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE
($25,000 maximum)

MINIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $50,000
MAXIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $750,000

LIBRARIES

PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITIES

SPECIAL PROJECTS $1,000,000

TRANSPORTATION-ORIENTED PUBLIC FACILITIES

APPLICATION REQUEST August 15, 2022
APPLICATION DEADLINE September 16, 2022

PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITIES/SERVICES

DEMOLITION VACANT, DILAPIDATED STRUCTURES
TO ADDRESS/SUPPORT CRIME PREVENTION

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

FIRE SUBSTATIONS OR FIRE TRUCKS

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

HEALTH CLINIC FACILITIES/EQUIPMENT

ENERGY CONSERVATION & HISTORIC
PRESERVATION

PUBLIC FACILITY MODIFICATIONS

PARK/TRAILS/GREENWAYS
MINIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $50,000
MAXIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $250,000

NEW SIDEWALKS IN LMI AREAS

MINIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $50,000
MAXIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $500,000*
(*$750,000 for streetscape projects)




READY TO GO $600,000

APPLICATION REQUEST ONGOING
APPLICATION DUE 30 DAYS AFTER REQUEST

NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION
$1,000,000- MUST HAVE A PLAN

ACTIVITIES LISTED IN COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY
ENRICHMENT

APPLICATION REQUEST August 15, 2022
APPLICATION DEADLINE September 16, 2022

INFRASTRUCTURE - WATER, SEWER, ROADS,
DRAINAGE

MINIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $50,000
MAXIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $500,000*
{(*maximum waiver available)

PUBLIC FACILITIES (SIDEWALKS, SECURITY
LIGHTING, CAMERAS, POLICE SUBSTATIONS)

NATIONAL OBJECTIVE

HOUSING - INFRASTRUCTURE TO SUPPORT
AFFORDABLE HOUSING

HOUSING - LIMITED EXTERIOR ONLY

eBenefit low-to-moderate income (“LMI”)
Persons

DEMOLITION AND CLEARANCE OF
VACANT/DILAPIDATED PROPERTIES

eAid in the prevention or elimination of
slums or blight

PUBLIC SERVICES (CRIME WATCH PROGRAM,
DRUG/GANG EDUCATION,
AWARENESS/PREVENTION PROGRAMS)

eMeet other urgent community needs
posing a serious threat to the health or
welfare of the community

MINIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $50,000
MAXIMUM FUNDING AMOUNT - $500,000*
(*$750,000 if project includes infrastructure)

10% MATCH REQUIREMENT FOR ALL PROJECTS




GRANT PROGRAM CATEGORIES

Business Development Program: $2,000,000

This program provides financial resources for local governments to pursue opportunities
that create new jobs, retain existing employment, stimulate private investment, and
revitalize or facilitate the competitiveness of the local economy. Funding will be prioritized
based on the following order:

1. New or expanding businesses tied to job creation

2. Area economic development activities not associated with job creation

3. New or expanding local businesses that provide essential goods and
services In predominately LMI communities

Regional Planning Program: $500,000

This program is designed to provide CDBG funds to Councils of Governments to assist
local governments in developing plans and building local community development
capacity.

State TA & Admin: $ 704,762




OPPORTUNITY ZONES

Projects located in Opportunity Zones will receive an
additional 10 bonus points (scopportunityzone.com)




PERFORMANCE THRESHOLD

A unit of local government can apply for an
additional Community Development grant if it has no
more than two open CDBG grants (excluding
Business Development or Regional Planning
grants).

However, the open grants must not have
exceeded a




PERFORMANCE THRESHOLD

No more than one Neighborhood
Revitalization/Village Renaissance or streetscape

project.
No more than one Ready to Go project.
No more than one project for the same general

target area/neighborhood open at the same time,
unless the current project is under construction.




BEAUFORT COUNTY/ LOWCOUNTRY
REGIONAIL HOME CONSORTIUM

The Beaufort County/Lowcountry Regional HOME
Consortium (LRHC) is comprised of the following
counties: Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton, and Jasper
and all 21 municipalities in the region.




BEAUFORT COUNTY/ LOWCOUNTRY
REGIONAL HOME CONSORTIUM

TOP THREE OBJECTIVES:

Rehabilitation of substandard housing
Increase accessibility to adequate and affordable

housing
Support the development and availability of safe,

decent, and affordable housing




BEAUFORT COUNTY/ LOWCOUNTRY
REGIONAL HOME CONSORTIUM

Beaufort, Hampton, Colleton and Jasper Counties have areas
that are in need of affordable housing, rehabilitation of
substandard housing, and demolition of vacant/dilapidated
houses.

As the housing stock ages, there becomes a greater need for
rehabilitation of substandard houses and the number of
vacant/dilapidated houses increases while increasing the
number of persons at risk for homelessness.

Please give us a list of the priority housing needs for your area
to be considered in our upcoming 2022-2023 Annual Action
Plan to be submitted to HUD by April 30, 2022.




AGENDA ITEM:
X

Resolution: Ttem A



RESOLUTION NO. R2022-04

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS, THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA OF A
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT WITH CP HARDEEVILLE, LLC WITH
RESPECT TO AN INDUSTRIAL PROJECT IN THE COUNTY WHEREBY THE
PROJECT WOULD BE SUBJECT TO PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF
TAXES, AND WHEREBY CP HARDEEVILLE, LLC WILL BE PROVIDED CERTAIN
CREDITS AGAINST FEE PAYMENTS IN REIMBURSEMENT OF INVESTMENT IN
RELATED QUALIFIED INFRASTRUCTURE; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED
MATTERS.

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County
Council (the “County Council™), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of
Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act™), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park Act”), Code of Laws
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), to enter into agreements with industry, to offer certain
privileges, benefits and incentives as inducements for economic development within the County; to acquire,
or cause to be acquired, properties as may be defined as “projects” in the Act and to enter agreements with
the business or industry to facilitate the construction, operation, maintenance and improvement of such
projects; to enter into or allow financing agreements with respect to such projects; and to accept any grants
for such projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the State will be
promoted, whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified industrial projects;
to provide credits against payment in licu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain
infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or unimproved real estate and personal
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the manufacturing or industrial enterprise
(collectively, “Infrastructure™); through all such powers, the industrial development of the State of South
Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial
enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and
resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare the County by providing services, employment,
recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and

WHEREAS, CP Hardeeville, LLC (the “Company™) has requested that the County assist in the
acquisition, construction and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment,
furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute a manufacturing or distribution
facility in the County (collectively, the “Project”), which will result in expected aggregate investment by
the Company in the Project of at least $184,450,000 in non-exempt investment (the “Project Commitment™)
by December 31 of the eighth year after the first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in
service (the “Investment Period™); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement
with the Company, thereby providing for certain fee in lieu of tax and infrastructure credit incentives with
respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are
defined in the FILOT Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the “Multi-County Park Authority™), the

Error! Unknown document property name.
WBD (US) 55604995v1



County intends to place the site on which the Project will be located in a multi-county industrial and
business park (a “Park”) established by the County pursuant to qualifying agreement with an adjoining
South Carolina county (the “Park Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, the County has determined and found, on the basis of representations of the
Company, that the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; that the Project
will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against
the general credit or taxing power of either; that the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e.,
economic development, creation of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper
governmental and public purposes; that the inducement of the location of the Project within the County and
State is of paramount importance; and that the benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. (a) Pursuant to the authority given to County Council by the South Carolina
Constitution, the Code, the FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, and subject to the enactment of
required legislative authorizations by the County Council (and the partner county in connection with the
Park Agreement), and for the purpose of providing development incentives for the Project through the
payment by the Company of fees in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-40
of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be executed a fee in lieu of tax agreement (the “FILOT Agreement™)
between the Company and the County.

(b) Pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, the County Council will use its best efforts to cause
the site of the Project to be located in a Park. Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act,
and for the purpose of providing reimbursement to the Company for certain of its investment in qualified
Infrastructure within the meaning and purposes of Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the FILOT Agreement shall
provide for a special source tax credit against payments in lieu of taxes in the amount of 40% of the
Company’s payments in lieu of taxes for each year of the Project, provided that the Company meets and
maintains the Project Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period.

Section 2. The provisions, terms and conditions of the FILOT Agreement shall be prescribed
and authorized by subsequent ordinance(s) of the County Council, which, to the extent not prohibited by
law, shall be consistent with the terms of this Resolution.

Section 3. All orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of
such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage
by the County Council.

Section 4. The authorization of the execution and delivery of the documents related to the
FILOT Agreement and all other related documents or obligations of the County is subject to the compliance
by the County Council with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the procedural requirements
for adopting ordinances and resolutions.

Section 5. It is the intention of the County Council that this resolution shall constitute an
inducement resolution with respect to the Project, within the meaning of the FILOT Act.

DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of , 2022,

WBD (US) 55604995v1



JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By: :
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council,
Jasper County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55604995v1



AGENDA ITEM:
X

Resolution: Tiem B



RESOLUTION NO. R2022-05

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS, THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA OF A
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT WITH SDKM COMMERCE, LLC WITH
RESPECT TO AN INDUSTRIAL PROJECT IN THE COUNTY WHEREBY THE
PROJECT WOULD BE SUBJECT TO PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF
TAXES, AND WHEREBY SDKM COMMERCE, LLC WILL BE PROVIDED
CERTAIN CREDITS AGAINST FEE PAYMENTS IN REIMBURSEMENT OF
INVESTMENT IN RELATED QUALIFIED INFRASTRUCTURE; AND PROVIDING
FOR RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County
Council (the “County Council™), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of
Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter | (the “Multi-County Park Act”), Code of Laws
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code™), to enter into agreements with industry, to offer certain
privileges, benefits and incentives as inducements for economic development within the County; to acquire,
or cause to be acquired, properties as may be defined as “projects” in the Act and to enter agreements with
the business or industry to facilitate the construction, operation, maintenance and improvement of such
projects; to enter into or allow financing agreements with respect to such projects; and to accept any grants
for such projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the State will be
promoted, whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified industrial projects;
to provide credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain
infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or unimproved real estate and personal
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the manufacturing or industrial enterprise
(collectively, “Infrastructure™); through all such powers, the industrial development of the State of South
Carolina (the “State™) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial
enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and
resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare the County by providing services, employment,
recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and

WHEREAS, SDKM Commerce, LLC (the “Company”) has requested that the County assist in the
acquisition, construction and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment,
furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute a manufacturing or distribution
facility in the County (collectively, the “Project™), which will result in expected aggregate investment by
the Company in the Project of at least $23,490,000 in non-exempt investment (the “Project Commitment”)
by December 31 of the eighth year after the first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in
service {the “Investment Period™); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement
with the Company, thereby providing for certain fee in lieu of tax and infrastructure credit incentives with
respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are
defined in the FILOT Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the “Multi-County Park Authority”), the

Error! Unknown document property name.
WBD (US) 55604996v]



County intends to place the site on which the Project will be located in a multi-county industrial and
business park (a “Park”) established by the County pursuant to qualifying agreement with an adjoining
South Carolina county (the “Park Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the County has determined and found, on the basis of representations of the
Company, that the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; that the Project
will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against
the general credit or taxing power of either; that the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, ie.,
economic development, creation of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper
governmental and public purposes; that the inducement of the location of the Project within the County and
State is of paramount importance; and that the benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. (a) Pursuant to the authority given to County Council by the South Carolina
Constitution, the Code, the FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, and subject to the enactment of
required legislative authorizations by the County Council (and the partner county in connection with the
Park Agreement), and for the purpose of providing development incentives for the Project through the
payment by the Company of fees in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-40
of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be executed a fee in lieu of tax agreement (the “FILOT Agreement”)
between the Company and the County.

{b) Pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, the County Council will use its best efforts to cause
the site of the Project to be located in a Park. Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act,
and for the purpose of providing reimbursement to the Company for certain of its investment in qualified
Infrastructure within the meaning and purposes of Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the FILOT Agreement shall
provide for a special source tax credit against payments in lieu of taxes in the amount of 40% of the
Company’s payments in lieu of taxes for each year of the Project, provided that the Company meets and
maintains the Project Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period.

Section 2. The provisions, terms and conditions of the FILOT Agreement shall be prescribed
and authorized by subsequent ordinance(s) of the County Council, which, to the extent not prohibited by
law, shall be consistent with the terms of this Resolution.

Section 3. All orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of
such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage
by the County Council.

Section 4. The authorization of the execution and delivery of the documents related to the
FILOT Agreement and all other related documents or obligations of the County is subject to the compliance
by the County Council with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the procedural requirements
for adopting ordinances and resolutions.

Section 5. It is the intention of the County Council that this resolution shall constitute an
inducement resolution with respect to the Project, within the meaning of the FILOT Act.

DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of , 2022,

WBD (US) 55604996v1



JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council,
Jasper County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55604996v1



AGENDA ITEM:
XI-A

Ordinance item A



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER
ORDINANCE NO. 0-2022-01

AN ORDINANCE TO REAPPORTION AND REDISTRICT THE FOUR (4)
ELECTION DISTRICTS FOR THE ELECTION OF JASPER COUNTY
COUNCIL MEMBERS BASED UPON THE 2020 DECENNIAL CENSUS IN
ORDER THAT THE POPULATION OF SUCH DISTRICTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965 AND SOUTH CAROLINA LAW.

ARTICLE]
FINDINGS OF FACT

Section 1.01. Recitals and Statement of Purpose.

Incident to the adoption of this Ordinance, the County Council of Jasper County,
South Carolina (the “Council”), the governing body of Jasper County, South Carolina
(the “County”), finds, as a fact, that each of the statements hereinafter set forth In

Article I is in all respects True and correct.

(a) The United States Department of Commerce has declared final the

results of the federal decennial census of 2020 (the “2020 Census”).

(b) In compliance with the United States Constitution, the Constitution

of the State of South Carolina, Title 4, Chapter 9 of the South Carolina Code of



Laws, 1976, as amended, and the United States Voting Rights Act of 1965, as
amended, the Council has determined to realign the electoral districts for the
election of members of Council in accordance with 2020 census and is adopting

this Ordinance for that purpose.

(c) In creating a reapportionment and redistricting plan, County Council first
adopted Resolution 2021- on December 6, 2021, setting forth the
considerations to be utilized in creating new district boundaries, and County

Council finds those considerations to have been fairly incorporated in the Plan as

described below.
ARTICLE 11
ADOPTION OF PLAN
Section 2.01 New District Lines.

From and after the Effective Date of this Ordinance as defined in Article VI
below, the County shall be divided into four (4) new districts (the “New Districts”) for
the purposes of electing members to the Council, and the previous District boundaries
are repealed.. Each New District shall be entitled to have one of its residents elected by
at-large county-wide voting in accordance with the Jasper County Ordinance providing
for the method of electing council members adopted on June 25, 1976 and pursuant to
Section 4-9-90 and Section 4-9-10, South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.

The fifth member of council shall continue be elected at-large county wide without a



residency requirement. The New Districts are as defined and delineated on the on the

[ 9

map entitled based on the statistical data

pertaining to such Districts as described contained in Exhibit A attached hereto. The
New Districts contained in this ordinance, the statistical data pertaining to such
districts, and the maps delineating these districts have been provided by the South
Carolina Department of Revenue and Fiscal Affairs. These maps and statistical data are
maintained in the Jasper County Clerk of Council Office. A copy of the map delineating
the geographic boundaries of the County Council New Districts and the census
information pertaining to such districts are incorporated by reference as if set forth

verbatim herein. The statistical census data is attached to this ordinance.

ARTICLE III

IMPLEMENTATION

Section 3.01 2022 Elections.

The Election Commission of the County is hereby directed, immediately upon the
Effective Date hereof, to undertake, by and with the South Carolina Election
Commission, all steps necessary for holding elections for members of the Council
according to the regular schedule for the primary elections and the general election on
November ___, 2022, in such of the New Districts as is required in accordance with

Section 4-9-90, South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.



ARTICLE IV

REPEAL

Section 4.01 Repeal of Inconsistent Provisions.

The existing ordinance previously adopted by the Council establishing the current
districts and any other ordinances of the Council now in effect that are inconsistent with

this Ordinance are hereby repealed as of the Effective Date of this Ordinance.

ARTICLEV

SEVERABILTY

If any part of this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid for
any reason, it shall be construed to have been the legislative intent of the County Council
of Jasper County, South Carolina, to pass this Ordinance without such unconstitutional
provision, and the remainder of said Ordinance shall be deemed and held to be valid as
if such portion had not been included. If this Ordinance, or any provision thereof, is held
to be inapplicable to any person, group of persons, property, kind of property,
circumstances or set of circumstances, such holding shall not affect the applicability

thereof to any other persons, property or circumstances.



ARTICLE VI

EFFECTIVE DATE

AND IT IS SO ORDAINED AND ADOPTED this day of

, 2022, by the Jasper County Council in meeting duly assembled

’

effective immediately.

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
By:

Barbara B. Clark , Chairwoman
Attest:

(SEAL)

Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council

First Reading: 01.18.2022
Second Reading: 02.07.2022
Public Hearings: 02.07.2022

Adopted:

It is required that the following Exhibits be attached before the second reading:

1. Exhibit A - Map
2. Exhibit B — Statistical Data

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

David L. Tedder Date



Jasper County: Current Voting Districts

JasperCounty_Voting_Districts

District

=1

2

m3

L]
Prison




Jasper County Redistricting
.RFA Draft 2 (Deviation 4.92)

Incumbents
—— StreatCenterlines
[ ] satewde2021
D Current Councll Districts
district
[:I Prison
B
2
.
= -




" Total Population by Race "Race defined using DOJ definttions. Not Hispanue or Latino is a_uwnms.bw.m.m as NH. ] Draft m.mmsmmﬂ.n.m‘ 2022

B N1 NH DO} DO}
mic 8 Hispanic  White Vhit Black* Black R ! D)

6 986% 4605 : 20.80% 185 2.68% 1 6,908 6,966 (58) £0.83%
[ 2 7,199 1,887 1% 2961 41.13% 2119 20.43% 232 3.22%| 2 7,199 6.966 233 3.34%
AspeT 3 6,901 1226 17.77% 3243 46.99% 223 3252% 188 2.72% 3 6.901 6.966 | (65) 0.93%
. lasper 4 6,856 1,246 1817% 2,018 29.43% 330 49.14% 223 3.25% 4 6.856 6,966 | {110) -1.58%
Total 27,864 5,040 18.09% 12827 46.03% 9169  3291% 828 297%, :
Lowest -1.58%
‘Higharst 33d%
ispamc or Latino is abbreviated as NH. Range 4.92% i
oy NH wNH
NH NH DOI O] Other
Total  Hispanie Tl i Wihite ®a NH Black® Elach Race L Haar County of Jasper Dreft 2, January 2022
Districh VAP VAP VAP White VAP VAP VAL VAP Target Population: 6,966
v L . 70.95% 18.38% 156 257%|
. Jasper 2 5658 1,203 20.30% 2,668 47.15% 1615 28.54% 170 - 3.00% , 1:500 . 7199
L Iasper 3 5291 771 1457% 2720  5141% 1,665 3147% 135 2.55% g 7000 mm
Jasper 4 5,160 737 14.28% 1695 32.85% 2552 49.40% 176 3% F Y _.._.,LJ
Total 22175 3,204 14.45% 11,387 51.35% 6547  3133% 637 287%) T om0 W i
5 5,000 =200
M 4,500 |..__
B 4,000
I M 9.500
|[MUNI_NAME Jasper ¥ & 300 =5
E 230 2
Sum of § 2000 _ T
Sum of Sum of Sum of  Sumof Sum of Sumof VAP NH Sum of A 1500 —-—
Hispanic Sumcof NH_DOJ.B NH.OTH VAP_TOTA VAP_HISP VAF_NH _DOJ_BL VAP_NH_OT & 1000 =)
\Raw Labels |’ Sum of total _O NH_WHT LK ER L ANIC O _WHT K HER g w0 )
1 6908 681 1603 1437 185 0066 191 1304 1115 156 S0 e
2 7199 1887 2961 2119 232 5658 1205 2668 1615 170 ’ 2
3 6901 122 3243 2244 188 5291 771 2720 1665 135 District
|2 . 6856 1246 2018 3369 23 5160] 737 1695 2552 176

|Grand Total 27864 5040 12,827 9,169 828 22,175 3204 11,387 6,947 637



Jasper County Redistricting
RFA Draft (Jan 12, 2022)

*  Ingumbents
!__J Current Council Districts
Jasper_Dratt_Blocks
district
[ Pemca
.
i :
I
B




Race “Race defined usang DOJ definshions, Mot Hi Draft Statistics, 2022
NH n WH DOJ Other  Ya tluer Ove
Couuty Diisteict Total  Hispamic "0 Hispanic  White Black® Black Race D 020 04 atio
o Jemper 6807 ! 934% 4538 6667% 1 2135% 150 2.64% 1 6807 | 6,966 {159) -228%
| Jasper 2 7199 1887  2621% 29l 4103% 2119 2943% 232 3.0% 2 7199  69%6] 233 3.34%
I Josper 3 6,959 1307 18.78% 3,326 47.79% 2121 3048% 205 295% | = 6,959 6.966 | {7} -0.10%
Jasper 4 6,599 1,210 17.54% 2,002 29.02% 3476  50.38% 211 3.06% [ 2 6,899 6,966 | 67y 0.96%
| Total 27561 5040 16.09% 12827 4603% 9163  3291% 828 2.97%, = o
Lowest -2.28%
Highest 334%
or Latino 15 abbreviated as NH. [Range 5.63%
% NH NH
DOT Other
Fotal  Hispaur %% Hispanic  White 9% NH ik Black Race B NH Other County of Jasper Draft, December 2021
Covnty K : it VAP VAP <}N_~Nu.ﬂ VAP White VA E VAP VAP llace VAP Target Populstion: 6,966
| Jaspec 2 5.658 1,205 21.30% 2,668 47.15% 1615  2854% 170 3.00% . 1500
| Jasper 3 530 B0 1541% 2787 5239% 1563 2938% 150 282% Lo -
| lasper 4 5,206 717 1377% 1676 32.19% 2647 0.85% 166 3.19% g o
Toml 2175 3204 1445% 11387 5135% 6947  3133% 637 257% v
Note The population of 927 housed at Ridgeland Correctional Institute was reinoved for thrs aualysis m wm
.m 4,000
_ ; = 3,500
|MUNI_NAME Juspes ¥ $ 300
! § 2500
Sumof ® 2000
Sum of Sum of Sumof  Sumof St of Samof VAP NH Sum of Z 1,500
i Hispanic Sumof NH_DOJ_B NH_OTH VAP TOTA VAP_HISP VAP _NH _DOJ.BL VAP NH_OT & vo00
Row Labels 17 Sum of total O NH_WHT LK R L ANICO WHT K HER g o=
1 6807 636 4538 1453 180 5991 467 4256 1122 151 ~ 9
2 7199 1887 2961 2119 232 5608 1205 2668 1615 170 ! ) !
3 6959 1307 3320 2121 205 5320 820 2787 1563 150 District
4 6899 1210 2002 e 211 3206 717 1676 2647 166

{Grand Total 27864 5040 12,827 9,169 828 22175 3204 11387 6,947 637



AGENDA ITEM:
XI-B

Ordinance item B



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-29

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CP HARDEEVILLE, LLC (FORMERLY KNOWN
TO THE COUNTY AS “PROJECT MANDOLIN”) (THE “COMPANY”) AND JASPER
COUNTY, WHEREBY JASPER COUNTY WILL ENTER INTO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT WITH THE COMPANY AND PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT BY THE
COMPANY OF CERTAIN FEES-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FEES-IN-LIEU OF TAXES
PAYABLE UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MULTI-
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING
THERETOQ.

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County™), acting by and through its County
Council {the “County Council”) is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions
of Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “FILOT
Act”), to designate real and tangible personal property as “economic development property” and to
enter into an arrangement which provides for payments-in-lieu of taxes (“FILOT Payments”) for a
project qualifying under the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through the County Council, is further authorized and
empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “the MCIP Act”) to provide for payments-in-
lieu of taxes with respect to property located in a multi-county business or industrial park created
under the MCIP Act and to permit investors to claim special source credits against their FILOT
Payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and
improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment,
used or to be used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance
the economic development of Jasper County (“Infrastructure Improvements™); and to create, in
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county park in order to afford certain
enhanced tax credits to such investors and facilitate the grant of special source or infrastructure
improvement credits; and

WHEREAS, CP Hardeeville, LLC (referred to herein as the “Company™) is considering an
industrial development at a site located in the City of Hardeeville (“City™) in Jasper County by
acquiring and constructing real property and real property improvements (the “Project’) which the
Company estimates will likely consist of a capital investment of at least One Hundred Eighty Four
Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00).

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a Fee Agreement with the Company, as the
Company has expressed its intent to the County to make a capital investment in the County (i.e.,

the Project);

WHEREAS, the Project is located entirely within Jasper County and, with the consent of the
Partner County (as defined herein) and the City of Hardeeville, will be included in and subject to

WBD (US) 54578278v6



the multi-county park and fee-in-lieu of tax arrangements as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the County has made specific proposals, including proposals to offer certain
economic development incentives set forth herein, for the purpose of inducing the Company to
invest its funds to acquire and equip the Project (the “Incentives™); and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest, for the public benefit and in furtherance of the public
purposes of the FILOT Act and the MCIP Act that the County Council provide approval for
qualifying the Project under the FILOT Act and the entire Project under the MCIP Act for the
Incentives;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. Evaluation of the Project. The County Council has evaluated the Project on the
following criteria based upon the advice and assistance of the South Carolina Department of
Revenue:

(a) whether the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and
public purposes;

(b) the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made; and
(c) the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
Section 2. Findings by County Council. —Based upon information provided by and
representations of the Company, County Council’s investigation of the Project, including the

criteria described in Section 1 above, and the advice and assistance of the South Carolina
Department of Revenue, as required, County Council hereby find that:

(a) the Project constitutes a “project™ as that term is defined in the FILOT Act;

(b) the Project will serve the purposes of the FILOT Act;

(c) the Company anticipates an investment of at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) within eight (8) years from the end of
the property tax year in which the Company and the County execute the FILOT Agreement
(as defined herein);

(d) the Project will be located entirely within the County;

(e) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services,
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally;

(f) the Project will not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or any municipality nor a
charge against its general credit or taxing power of the County or any municipality;

WBD (US) 54578278v6



(g) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public
purposes;

(h) the inducement of the location of the Project is of paramount importance; and
(1) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public.

Section 3. Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Arrangement. Pursuant to the authority of the FILOT Act,
the Project is hereby designated as “economic development property” under the FILOT Act and
there is hereby authorized a fee-in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the Company for a term of thirty
(30) years, which will provide FILOT Payments to be made with respect to the Project based upon
a 6% assessment ratio and a millage rate which shall be fixed for the full term of the agreement at
457.0 mills, and including Special Source Revenue Credits in the amount of 40% of the Project for
each year of the Term (as defined in the FILOT Agreement), subject to reduction at the County’s
discretion based on failure to achieve certain investment thresholds during the investment period,
all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement by and between the Company and the County (the
“FILOT Agreement”).

Section 4. Extension of Investment Period. The Company has represented to the County
that it does not anticipate completing the Project within five (5) years of the last day of the property
tax year during which economic development property is first placed in service (the “Investment
Period”). Accordingly, the Company has applied to the County for an extension of time to
complete the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act. The County hereby
extends the Investment Period by three (3) additional years; provided however that there is no
extension of the period for meeting the minimum statutory investment requirement as specified in
Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act.

Section 5. Execution of the Fee Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the FILOT
Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk of the County Council be and hereby
are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein
by reference as if such FILOT Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair
of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the FILOT Agreement in the name
and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the FILOT Agreement to be delivered to the
Company. The FILOT Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and
hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of
the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their
approval of all changes therein from the form of FILOT Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 6. Multi-County Park.

(a) The County, in cooperation with Hampton County (the “Partner County”) and subject to
the consent of the City of Hardeeville, which consent has been provided pursuant to that
certain Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of November 5, 2021 between Jasper
County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (the “2021 IGA™), hereby designates

WBD (US) 54578278v6



the site of the Project as a multi-county park (the “Park™) pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13 of the Constitution of South Carolina, the MCIP Act, and the terms of that certain
Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business Park by and between
the County and the Partner County and dated as of even date herewith or the date of the
Partner County’s approval of said Agreement (the “MCIP Agreement”). In the FILOT
Agreement, the County will agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain
such designation throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement.

(b) Pursuant to the terms of the MCIP Act and the MCIP Agreement, the County hereby
provides that throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement, the annual allocation of the
fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes payable by the Company to the County in accordance with
the terms of the MCIP Agreement, after deducting any amounts distributed to the Partner
County, will be distributed as follows:

a. To the County, for providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, an amount equal
to the annual Special Source Revenue Credits provided in Section 3 of this
Ordinance and in the FILOT Agreement; and

b. After making the allocations under paragraph (a) of this Section, Park Revenues (as
defined in the MCIP Agreement) derived from the Project shall be distributed in
accordance with the MCIP Agreement and allocable to the County as the “Host
County” under the MCIP Agreement in accordance with that certain
Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 5, 2021 between the County and
the City.

Section 7. Miscellaneous.

(a) The Chair and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to
execute, deliver and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by
the County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized
by this Ordinance.

(b} This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State
of South Carolina,

(¢} This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following its third
reading by the County Council.

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section,
phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of
the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

(e) All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the
conflict, hereby repealed.

WBD (US) 54578278v6



[Signature Page to Follow]

WBD (US) 54578278v6



ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of , 2022,

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

{SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

First Reading: October 4, 2021
Second Reading: February 7, 2022
Public Hearing: February 22, 2022
Third Reading: February 22, 2022

WBD (US) 54578278v6



WBD Draft of 2.14.22

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER ) OF MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/
)
)

BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK)
COUNTY OF HAMPTON

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK) for the establishment of a multi-county
industrial/business park to be located within Jasper County and Hampton County is made and entered into as
of » 2022, by and between Jasper County, South Carolina (“Jasper County™) and Hampton County,
South Carolina (“Hampton County™).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Jasper County and Hampton County are contiguous counties which, pursuant to
Ordinance No. : , enacted by Jasper County Council on February 22, 2022, and Ordinance No.
enacted by Hampton County Council on , 2022, have each determined that, in

order to promote economic development and thus encourage investment and provide additional employment
opportunities within both of said counties, there should be established in Jasper County a multi-county
industrial/business park (the “Park™), to be located upon property more particularly described in Exhibit A

(Jasper); and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park and
all property having a situs therein is exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees
in an amount equivalent to the property taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and
payable except for such exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the entire
agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Jasper County and Hampton County, their successors
and assigns.

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution provides that
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical
boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are met
and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a manner in
which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded indebtedness of political
subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to
any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school district to support its schools
based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as compared to the assessed valuation of
taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. The Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Code”) and particularly, Section 4-1-170 thereof, satisfies the conditions imposed by Article
VIIL, Section 13(D} of the South Carolina Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a multi-
county industrial or business park may be created.

3. Location of the Park.

WBD (US) 55488175v2



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
(A) The Park consists of property that is located in Jasper County and which now or will be
owned by project sponsors for the purpose of establishing industrial, distribution and/or commercial
facilities, the property being more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto. It is specifically recognized
that the Park may from time to time consist of non-contiguous properties within Jasper County. The
boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County (“Jasper Approval), and resolution of the county council of Hampton
County (“Hampton Approval”). Except as permitted by the Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of
November 5, 2021 between Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (“2021 IGA™)
attached hereto as Exhibit B, if any property proposed for inclusion in the Park is located, at the time such
inclusion is proposed, within the boundaries of a municipality, then the municipality must give its consent
prior to the inclusion of the property in the Park.

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit A which shall
contain a legal description of the boundaries of the Park as enlarged or diminished, together with a copy
of Jasper Approval and the Hampton Approval pursuant to which such enlargement or diminution was
authorized.

© Prior to any Jasper Approval authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, a
public hearing shall first be held by Jasper County Council. Notice of such public hearing shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation in Jasper County, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior
to such hearing. Notice of such public hearing shall also be given by certified mail that is deposited with the
U.S. Postal Service at least fifteen (15) days prior to such public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable,
the lessee of any property which would be excluded from the Park by virtue of the diminution.

4. Fee in Lieun of Taxes.

(A) Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, all property
located in the Park is exempt from all ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of any property situated
in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount (referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and payable
but for the location of such property within the Park.

(B) The amount of the annual fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes may be reduced if the owner or
lessee of property located in the Park (i) has negotiated a fee in-lieu-of taxes arrangement with respect to
the property with Jasper County pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-10, et seq., 4-12-30, or 4-29-
67 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be
provided under South Carolina law, or (ii) receives a special source revenue or infrastructure credit with
respect to the property under the provisions of Section 4-1-175 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be provided under South Carolina law (collectively,
(1) and (ii), “Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreements™).

5. Allocation of Expenses. Jasper County and Hampton County shall bear expenses incurred
in connection with the Park, including, but not limited to, those incurred in the administration, development,
operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park, in the following proportions:

A. Jasper County — 100%
B. Hampton County — 0%

6. Allocation of Revenues. Jasper County and Hampton County shall receive an allocation of
all revenues generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“Park
Revenues”) in the following proportions:

WBD (US) 55488175v2



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
A. Jasper County — 99%
B. Hampton County — 1%

Any payment from Jasper County to Hampton County of Hampton County's allocable share of Park
Revenues shall be made and accompanied by a statement showing the manner in which total payment
and each County's share were calculated. If any Park Revenues are received by Jasper County through
payment by any owner, or any lessee/tenant, or any other taxpayer is made under protest, or otherwise
as part of a dispute, then Jasper County is not obligated to pay Hampton County more than Hampton
County's share of the undisputed portion of the Park Revenues until thirty (30) days after the final
resolution of the protest or dispute.

7. Revenue Allocation within Each County. Park Revenues received shall be distributed to
and within the County as follows:

(A)  Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes
shall be distributed to Jasper County and to Hampton County, as the case may be, according to the
proportions established by this Agreement. With respect to revenues allocable to Jasper County by way of
fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes generated from properties within the Park, such revenue shall be distributed
within Jasper County pursuant to the 2021 IGA.

(B)  With respect to revenues allocable to Hampton County by way of fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes generated from properties located in the Park, such revenue shall be distributed within Hampton
County in accordance with a distribution scheme established by the Hampton County Council and, in the
absence of any such adopted distribution scheme, on a pro rata basis to the millage levying entities in
Hampton County.

8. Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the Code. It is
hereby agreed that the entry by Jasper County into any one or more Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax
Agreements with respect to property located within the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be
at the sole discretion of Jasper County.

9, Consent by the City and Other Municipalities. [n accordance with the Act, the City
of Hardeeville, by Resolution No. 2021-11-4F and the terms of the 2021 IGA, has consented to the
location of the property within the City’s geographical boundaries in the Park as described on Exhibit A
as of the effective date of this agreement.

10. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Jasper County and Hampton County
and to each of the taxing entities within the participating counties shall be in accordance with the
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the counties and by each of the taxing entities
within the participating counties, pursuant to Sections 6 and 7 herein.

11. Governing Laws and Regulations. Any applicable ordinances and regulations of Jasper
County including those concerning zoning, health and safety, and building code requirements shall apply to
the Park properties located in the Jasper County portion of the Park unless any such property is within the
boundaries of a municipality in which case, the municipality's applicable ordinances and regulations shall
apply.

11. South Carolina Law Controlling. This Agreement has been entered into in the State of
South Carolina and shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with South Carolina law.

WBD (US) 55488175v2



WBD Draft of 2.14.22

12, Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision

or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of

competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that
provision or any other provision of this Agreement.

13. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts.

14. Additional Parties. This Agreement may be amended from time to time to add additional
counties located in South Carolina, subject to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South
Carolina and Title 4, Chapter | of the Code, by ordinance of the county council of Jasper County, and by
resolution of the county council of Hampton County; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by
law, additional counties may be added as parties hereto with only the enactment of an ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County only in the event that such additional county's allocation of Park Revenues
hereunder shall be allocated solely out of Jasper County's residual net share of the Park Revenues provided
for its use and distribution pursuant to Section 7 hereof.

15. Term; Termination. Except as specifically provided in this Section 15, Jasper County
and Hampton County agree that this Agreement may not be terminated in its entirety by unilateral action
of any party and shall remain in effect for a period equal to the longer of (i) thirty-one (31) years
commencing with the effective date of this Agreement or (ii) a period of time of sufficient length to
facilitate any special source revenue credits due with respect to Park property. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time upon adoption of ordinances by the County Councils of both Jasper County and
Hampton County, which ordinances must specifically authorize the termination of this Agreement.

16. Law Enforcement Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority
and power within the boundaries of the Park properties is vested with the Sheriff's Office of Jasper County,
for matters within their jurisdiction. If any of the Park properties are within the boundaries of a
municipality, then jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise law enforcement jurisdiction is also vested with
the law enforcement officials of the municipality for matters within their jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the day
and the year first above written.

[signatures on following page]

WBD (US) 55488175v2



[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Jasper County, South Carolina

[SEAL]
Aftest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Hampton County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55488175v2

WBD Drafi of 2.14.22

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chair, County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

HAMPTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:
Chair, County Council
Hampton County, South Carolina




WBD Draft of 2.14.22
Exhibit A (Jasper)
PARK PROPERTY

All those certain properties consisting of the Monroe Tract (TMS ## 038-00-04-059 and 039-00-03-004).

WBD (US) 55488175v2



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
Exhibit B
Intergovernmental Agreement

WBD (US) 55488175v2



Draft — February 14, 2022

FEE AGREEMENT
by and between
CP HARDEEVILLE, LLC
and
JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Dated as of February 22, 2022

WBD (US) 54576051v8



Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION ....coovoviviveireresreeesseeresseeeeeseseeses e s ss e, 3
Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation ...............cc.oiieriirooeeeeeereseresesesssssessessesesnaes 5
Section 1.02. Definitons ..c..weismisismmismssiisesas R e S R T T B 6
Section 1.03, References (0 AGIEEMENL...............euuiiesuirecueissemssesssssssssnesessessssmsessmsessseesssssssses 10

ARTICLE Il REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.......ocovivorrireeeeeeereeeresessessssee s, 10
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by COUNLY ......c...cooiureiueirieesiiusnesesserssensneens 10
Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the COMPANY ..........coocevvverieeiireesseresserenen. 10

ARTICLE IIIl UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY ...oootiiiitieeecteeeicecsssssssesessseesessesssseesssssssssons 11
Section 3.01  Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes..........cccocoveveurvennn.n. 11
Section ¥.02  No WArrantieR By oMM oo mimimmsin i i i 12
Secton:30F  AnvElidiby i s R R R R 12
Section 3.04  Multi-County Park STAtUS ..........corvevieriiee oo e eeee e er e esssone 13

ARTICLE IV UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY .....oooiiciiesieisssissssesssssssensessessssessens 13
Section 4.01. Investment by Company in ProJect.........cooeuecriiovriiirioriiin e seesienssseseesesessns 13
Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing .........cccuiimimincicecss st ssn s eree e 13
Section 4.03. Modification 0f PrOJECL. .......covcceueiceerices et ees e eesses 14

ARTICLE V- PAYMENTS IN-LIEU DF TAKES. s siinivirivuics o tosie s it siss i 15
Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem TAXES ........ccevveeceeeevrenrsinerseseesessoseeesesssssssns 15

ARTICLE VIPAYMENTS BY COMPANY ......coonrrciceercerennns T 19
Section 6.01. Defaulted PAYMENtS .......cccuiieoecrecceeeeecesecs et eesee e s e e s s e e 19

ARTICLE VII CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION ......coconiissmmivsereeaeesaeasssrssrssasssssssmsesosenns 19
Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or Condemnation........... 19

ARTICLE VIII PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS .......ooomeeeeeeeeeseeessseens 20
Section .01, Use of Project for Lawfill ACHVIHES........cc..ccccomrormiosmessmssssinsssonsssnssensisasssississnn 20
Secton 8,02, Tndem i ICatiOn .ot s e S e i i 20
Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor AfTILATES..........ccouveriviiriisioes oo e, 21
Section 8.04. Compliance With GASB 77 ......c.cooriiiiinrinniirissisisiscessesessesiesss s sssesssessse e 21

ARTICLE IX FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS .......... 22
Section 9.01, Conveyance of Liens and Interests; ASSINMENt ..........ccocoerevreriresereeerssisiiinns 22
Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured Parties ................22

ARTICLE X TERM; TERMINATION.......cocooiiiiiiiariniessessssisseessssessesessesssseresssseassssesesessssssns 22



Section 10.02. TeIMiNAON. .c.ov.ureeeereeierieissese et ssaes e eessssseesessesessesesse s essesasssssee st e e 23
ARTICLE XI EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES........ocooioeeoeeeeeeeeesesosses s 24
Section 11.01. Events of Default by COMPANY..........ccoueeoiieerereersree oo ee oot 24
Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by CoOmpPany .........ccocoevviveoreeeeeeseeesoesss 24
SECHOTE § 103 DR P O ATOUTIRN v 1 i s smsa s e st oo e R S 25
Section [1.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One WaiVer...........ocooovvevveieeeeviesosson 25
Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses .................. 25
ARTICLE XIT MISCELLANEOUS........ooiiiiiieieieeie e sse s esesessessesseseessesseesssseesssssse e eese s 25
Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.............ccov.ieiiueicieesriesenssneenssssseeeesess s 25
Section 12.02. Successors and ASSIZNS ............co.ovwuiuriusieisssesesessssersessseesseeesseessssessessesssssessses 25
Section 12.03. Administration EXPEISES. ...........ovvmreueieuisiessiarosssssesssesmesseemesesseessssssssessssens 26
Section 12.05. Notices; Demands; ReQUESLS ............ccerumoressmassiossoieeeesseasssssessrssssssesmmessssessnes 26
Secton’ 12.06: APPICabIE LaW. o i d s S i 27
Section 12.07. Entire Understanding .........c.ccovvvveuieiisioieeeeeeceeeeeeeee et sessss s sss e 27
Section 12.08. SVEIADIIILY .......cveveueeicerireie st tes e ee et et ee s 27
Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References....co.oovvueveeeeeeeosevesssssssseosesssns 27
Section:] 2. 10 Multipl e ounberD s, i i e i S 2 e oo seearn 27
Section 12.11. AMENAMENTS ........o.viiueveeereieteies e eeeisesessseseme e seeesseeee s sesseseseesseessss e sessses s 27
SECHON 12,12, WAIVET.....oviiiiriiiriiireieesesesete s ecesessseiresss et tes et es e sessee s ee e st e e s e e s e e e ee st ens 27
Section 1213 Foree IRBIENIR . .. muivuins st v 00 il s e oy e A L 27



FEE AGREEMENT

This FEE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated as of February 22, 2022, by and
between CP Hardeeville, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company™), and
Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the
State of South Carolina (the “County”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the
“Act”) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (the
“Code”) and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-172, and 4-1-175 of the Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D)
of the South Carolina Constitution (the “Multi-County Park Act™): (i) to enter into agreements
with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain industrial and
commercial properties through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina
will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to
locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and thus utilize and employ the workforce,
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (i) to covenant with such investors to
accept certain payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the project (a “FILOT”); (iif)
to maintain, create or expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county
industrial park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; and (iv)
permit investors to claim special source credits against FILOT payments to reimburse such
investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used or to be used in the
operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic
development of the County;

WHEREAS, the Company proposes to purchase and develop the Project (as defined
herein) within the County;

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that the Project will result in an investment of One
Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) in the
County;

WHEREAS, as a result of the Company locating certain operations in the County, the
Company requested that the County complete the FILOT arrangement by entering into this
Agreement with the Company pursuant to the Act, and the Company elects to enter into such
FILOT arrangement with the County in an effort to encompass the terms surrounding the Project
and allowing the Company to make FILOT Payments pursuant to the Act;

WHEREAS, for the Project, the parties have also determined that the Company is a
Sponsor, and that the Project constitutes Economic Development Property, each within the
meaning of the Act; and



WHEREAS, for the purposes set forth above, the County has determined that it is in the
best interests of the County to enter into this Agreement with the Company, subject to the terms
and conditions herein set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafter contained, and the sum of $1.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to the County,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Company

agree as follows:

(a)

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION

Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation.

Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act, the County and the Company

agree to waive the recapitulation requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Act.
Subsection (b) of this section is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a
part of this Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Act.

(b)
1.

Summary of Agreement:

Legal name of each initial party to this Agreement:

CP Hardeeville, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Jasper County, South Carolina

County, street address, parcel number or other location identifier of the
Project and property to be subject to this Agreement:

See Exhibit A

Minimum investment agreed upon: $184,450,000.00

Length and term of this Agreement: thirty (30) years for each annual
increment of investment in the Project during the Investment Period

Investment Period: eight (8) years
Assessment ratio applicable for each year of this Agreement: 6%
Millage rate applicable for each year of this Agreement: 457.0 mills

Schedule showing the amount of the fee and its calculation for each year
of this Agreement: Waived by the County and the Company.

Schedule showing the amount to be distributed annually to each of the
affected taxing entities: Waived by the County and the Company.

5



10. Statements

(a) The Project is to be located in a multi-county industrial or business
park;

{(b) Disposal of property subject to payments-in-licu-of-taxes is
allowed,

(c) Special Source Revenue Credits will be provided in an amount of
forty percent (40%) of FILOT payments for each year of the Term.

(c) Payment will not be modified using a net present value calculation;
and

(d) Replacement property provisions will apply.

11.  Any other feature or aspect of this Agreement which may affect the
calculation of items (8) and (9) of this summary.
None.

12. Description of the effect upon the schedules required by items (8) and (9)
of this summary of any feature covered by items (10) and (1) not
reflected in the schedules for items (8) and (9): Waived by the County and
the Company.

13. Which party or parties to this Agreement are responsible for updating any
information contained in this summary: The Company,

Section 1.02. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere
defined in this Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles
hereto shall have the following meanings, unless the context or use indicates another or different
meaning or intent.

“dct” or “Simplified FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.

“Administration Expense” shall mean the reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket
expenses, including attorneys® fees, incurred by the County with respect to: (i) the preparation,
review, approval and execution of this Agreement; (ii) the preparation, review, approval and
execution of other documents related to this Agreement and any multi-county park documents;
and (iif) the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and any multi-county park
documents, and in the implementation and administration of the terms and provisions of the
documents after the date of execution thereof.

“Affiliate” shall mean any Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or
under common control with such other Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” means
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of the Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract, or otherwise.



“Agreement” shall mean this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and among the County
and the Company, as originally executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as
permitted herein, and dated as of February 22, 2022.

“Co-Investor” shall mean the Company, any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within
the meaning of Sections 12-44-30(19) and (20) of the Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of
any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any tenant leasing all or a portion of the Project
from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer in a build-
to-suit arrangement or other leasing arrangement with respect to the Project, any lessor of
equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, and any financing entity or other
third party investing in, providing funds for or otherwise making investment in real or personal
property in connection with the Project. The Company shall notify the County in writing of the
identity of any other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate or other Co-Investor and shall, to the extent the
Company and any such other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other Co-Investor intend to extend
the benefits of the FILOT to property owned by any such Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other
Co-Investor pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof, comply with any additional notice requirements, or
other applicable provisions, of the Act. As of the original execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Company is the only Co-Investor.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the
date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the
Project or any portion thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day
of the property tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the
Company enter into this Agreement.

“Company” shall mean CP Hardeeville, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and
its successors and assigns.

“Confidential Information™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(c) hereof.

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns.

“County Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue.

“Economic Development Property” shall mean each item of real and tangible personal
property comprising the Project, except Non-Qualifying Property, if any, within the meaning of
that term as defined and used in Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code.

“Equipment” shall mean all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and other personal
property acquired by the Company and installed as part of the Project during the Investment

Period in accordance with this Agreement.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.01 hereof.
7



“Existing Property” shall mean property proscribed from becoming Economic
Development Property pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Code, including, without limitation,
property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall
not include: (i} property acquired or constructed by the Company during the Investment Period
which has not been placed in service in this State prior to the Investment Period notwithstanding
that ad valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property; (ji) modifications
which constitute an expansion of Existing Property; or (ii/) property described in Section 12-44-
110 of the Code to the extent that the Company and any Co-Investors invest at least an additional
Forty-Five Million Dollars ($45,000,000.00) in the Project.

“FILOT” shall mean the fee-in-lieu of taxes, which the Company are obligated to pay to
the County pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Payments” shall mean the payments to be made by the Company or any Co-
Investor with respect to its respective portion of the Project, whether made as Negotiated FILOT
Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as FILOT payments made pursuant to the Multi-
County Park Act.

“Investment Commitment” shall mean the agreement of the Company and any other Co-
Investors to make investments with respect to the Project as set forth in Sections 2.02(d) and 4.01
of this Agreement.

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that Economic
Development Property is purchased or acquired and ending on the date that is eight (8) years
from the Commencement Date (which Investment Period represents a five-year investment
period, plus an additional three (3) years that the County has hereby granted pursuant to the Act).

“Land” shall mean the real estate upon which the Project is to be located, as described in
Exhibit A attached hereto. Additional real estate may be included as part of Exhibit A as
provided in Section 4.03(i), and the Company shall deliver to the County an updated Exhibit A to
reflect such addition.

“Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial/business park established
pursuant to that certain Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business
Park, by and between the County and Hampton County, South Carolina (as amended, modified,
supplemented or replaced from time to time).

“Multi-County Park Act” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto.
“Negotiated FILOT shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof.

“Negotiated FILOT Payment” shall mean the FILOT due pursuant to Section 5.01(b)
hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property.



“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the Project, if any, consisting of: (i)
property as to which the Company incurred expenditures prior to the Investment Period or,
except as to Replacement Property, after the end of the Investment Period; (ii) Existing Property;
and (ii) any Released Property or other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated
FILOT Payments, including without limitation property as to which the Company have
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(a)(iii) hereof.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated
organization, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean, collectively herein, the Land and buildings and other improvements
on the Land to the extent placed thereon by or on behalf of the Company or any Co-Investor,
including water, sewer treatment and disposal facilities, and other machinery, apparatus,
equipment, office facilities, and furnishings which are necessary, suitable, or useful, including
the Equipment, and any Replacement Property.

“Project Millage Rate” shall mean a millage rate of 457.0 mills.

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the
Company, or any other Co-Investor, as the case may be.

“Released Property” shall mean any portion of the Project removed, scrapped, traded in,
sold, or otherwise disposed of pursuant to Section 4.03 hereof, any portion of the Project stolen,
damaged, destroyed, or taken by condemnation or eminent domain proceedings as described in
Article VII hereof, and any infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use (within
the meaning of that phrase as used in Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code).

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property installed in or on the Land in
substitution of, or as replacement for, any portion of the Project, but only to the extent that such
property may be included in the calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(c)
hereof and Section 12-44-60 of the Code.

“Special Source Revenue Credits” shall mean the special source credits provided
pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof.

“Sponsor” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Code. As of
the date of this Agreement, the Company is the only Sponsor.

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(20) of the Code.
“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.
“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 10.01 hereof.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.



Section 1.03. References to Agreement. The words “hereof’, “herein”,
“hereunder”, and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole.

ARTICLE I
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a)  The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of South Carolina and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act
to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its
obligations hereunder.

(b)  The County, based on representations of the Company, has determined
that the Project will serve the purposes of the Act, and has made all other findings of fact
required by the Act in order to designate the Project as Economic Development Property.

(c) By proper action of the County Council, the County has duly authorized
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions necessary and
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d)  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the
County.

(e) The County agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to continue
to cause the Land to be located within the Multi-County Park, and the County will take
all reasonable acts to ensure that the Project will continuously be included within the
boundaries of the Multi-County Park or another multi-county park during the Term of
this Agreement in order that the maximum tax benefits afforded by the laws of the State
for projects in the County located within multi-county industrial parks will be available to
the Company.

(H No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the County are pending or threatened against or affecting
the County in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company. The Company
makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part
herein contained:

10



(a) The Company is a limited liability company, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of Delaware and authorized to do business in the State; has all
requisite power to enter into this Agreement; and by proper action has been duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement.

(b) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT have been
instrumental in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County and the
State.

(c) Except as otherwise disclosed to the County, no actions, suits,
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the undersigned representatives of the
Company are pending or threatened against or affecting the Company in any court or
before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, which could
materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or which
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

(d)  For the Project, the Company commits to an investment, collectively with
any Co-Investors, of at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four Hundred Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) (the “Project Commitment™) in Economic
Development Property by the end of the eight-year Investment Period. The investment
amount shall not include any amount paid by the Company for real estate improvements
on the Land placed in service as of the date of this Agreement. Investments made by the
Company and any Co-Investors in Economic Development Property shall be included in
the determination whether the Company has fulfilled its commitment made in this item to
invest in the Project.

(e) The income tax year of the Company, and accordingly the Property Tax
Year, for federal income tax purposes is a 52/53 week fiscal year ending December 31.

) No event has occurred and no condition currently exists with respect to the
Company, which would constitute a default or an Event of Default as defined herein.

(g)  This Agreement is a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such terms may
be limited by laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

ARTICLE III
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY

Section 3.01 Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes.

(a) The County hereby agrees to accept FILOT Payments made by the
Company and any Co-Investor in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof in lieu of ad
valorem taxes with respect to the Project until this Agreement expires or is sooner
terminated.

11



(b)  The County hereby acknowledges and agrees that, pursuant to Section 12-
43-220(d)(6) of the Act, no Economic Development Property shall be subject to rollback
taxes. The County further covenants, to the extent allowed by law, that any portion of the
Land that has not been developed by the Company (or by any Co-Investors) shall
continue to be assessed using the agricultural assessment ratio until such Land is
developed, so long as such property lawfully qualifies for such assessment ratio.

Section 3.02 No Warranties by County. The Company acknowledges that the
County has made no warranties or representations, either express or implied, as to the condition
or state of the Project or as to the design or capabilities of the Project or that it will be suitable
for the Company’s purposes or needs. No representation of the County is hereby made with
regard to compliance by the Project or any Person with laws regulating: (i) the construction or
acquisition of the Project; (/i) environmental matters pertaining to the Project; (iii) the offer or
sale of any securities; or (iv) the marketability of title to any property.

Section 3.03 Invalidity. The parties acknowledge that the intent of this
Agreement is to afford the Company and any Co-Investors the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT
Payments in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate the Project within the County and
that this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Simplified
FILOT Act. In the event that, for any reason, the Act and/or the Negotiated FILOT or any
portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, declared
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of the Project consisting of Economic
Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act
in whole or in part, the Company and the County express their intentions that such payments be
reformed so as to afford the Company or any Co-Investors benefits commensurate with those
intended under this Agreement as then permitted by law, including without limitation any
benefits afforded under the Code, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal authorization to
effect such reformation, the Company and the County agree that there shall be due hereunder,
with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property affected by such
circumstances, ad valorem taxes and that, to the extent permitted by law, the Company and any
Co-Investors shall be entitled: (/) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or
fees in lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any
other exemption allowed by law; (ii) to enjoy all allowable depreciation; and (iii) to receive other
tax credits which would be due if the Company or any Co-Investor were obligated to pay ad
valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT
Payments hereunder are required by law to be subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall
be due and payable by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County with respect to the portion
of the Economic Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between
the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with, but only if required by law, interest on such
deficiency as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code. The Company agrees that if this
Agreement is reformed as provided in this Section or if retroactive adjustments are made, then
under no circumstances shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the
Company or any Co-Investor.

12



In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, the County shall not be
obligated to perform any of its obligations or promises under this Section 3.03 unless the
Company has otherwise complied with or provides satisfactory evidence to the County that it
intends to comply with its obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement.

Section 3.04 Multi-County Park Status. The County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the Land in the Multi-County Park until the date this
Agreement expires or is terminated. If it becomes necessary to remove the Land from the Multi-
County Park prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to place the Land in another multi-county park established
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and to maintain the multi-county park designation until
the date this Agreement is terminated. The parties acknowledge and agree that the County’s
agreement to place and maintain the Land in a multi-county park may be subject to the exercise
of discretion by a governmental entity other than the County and the exercise of that discretion is
not controlled by the County.

ARTICLE IV
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.01. Investment by Company in Project. For the Project, the Company
agrees to invest, collectively with any Co-Investors, at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million
Four Hundred Fifty Thousand ($184,450,000.00) in Economic Development Property by the end
of the Investment Period. Investments made by the Company and any Co-Investors in Economic
Development Property shall be included in any determination whether the Company has fulfilled
its commitments made in this Section.

Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing.

(a) The Company agrees to provide a copy of Form PT-443 filed with the
Department of Revenue to the County Auditor, the County Economic Development
Director, the County Attorney, the County Administrator and the County Assessor of the
County and the County Auditor and the County Assessor of Hampton County, not later
than thirty (30) days after execution and delivery of this Agreement. Each year during
the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the County Auditor, the
County Economic Development Director, the County Attorney, the County Assessor, the
County Administrator and the County Treasurer, a copy of their most recent annual
filings made with the Department of Revenue with respect to the Project, not later than
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department of Revenue. The Company
acknowledges that the terms of the Act provide that to the extent requested, the Jasper
County Auditor shall make such forms and returns available to the County Auditor of
Hampton County. The Company agrees to provide the County with written notice of any
failure to comply with the reporting requirements set forth in this Section,

(b)  The Company agrees to maintain such books and records with respect to
the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project placed in

13



service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of
investment with respect thereto and its computations of all FILOT Payments made
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County
applicable to property subject to FILOT Payments under the Act, including the reports
described in paragraph (a) {collectively, “Filings™).

(c) The County acknowledges and understands that the Company may have
and maintain at the Project certain confidential and proprietary information, including,
but not limited to, trade secrets, financial, sales or other information concerning the
Company’s operations and processes (“Confidential Information™) and that any
disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial harm to the
Company and could have a significant detrimental impact on the Company’s employees
and also upon the County. The Company acknowledges that the County is subject to the
provisions of the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. The County acknowledges
that information the Company may hereafter provide to the County and which is clearly
identified as Confidential Information may be deemed by the Company to be confidential
and proprietary. To the extent that the Company clearly identifies information as
Confidential Information, the County agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such
Confidential Information and will, to the extent permitted by law (including, specifically,
the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act), decline to honor any request for release
of the Confidential Information so designated to persons other than the Company and its
designated officers and representatives. In the event that the County is required by law to
disclose any Confidential Information obtained from the Company to any third party, the
County agrees to provide the Company with prompt advance notice of such requirement
before making such disclosure. In the event an action at law or equity is brought against
the County to require the disclosure of any Confidential Information that the Company
identified as Confidential Information, the County reserves the right to include the
Company in such action, and the Company hereby agrees to bear the reasonable costs
associated with defending the County in such action, including payment of any judgment
against the County for attorneys’ fees or other liabilities related to such action.

Section 4.03. Modification of Project. As long as no Event of Default exists
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

(1) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at its own expense,
add to the Project Land or any real and personal property as the Company or each
other Co-Investor in its discretion deems useful or desirable.

(i1) In any instance where the Company or any other Co-Investor, in its
discretion, determines that any items included in the Project have become
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary for
operations at the Project, the Company or such other Co-Investor may remove such
items or portions from the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without the consent of the County; as such
may be permitted under the Simplified FILOT Act.

14



(11i) The Company and any other Co-Investor may, at any time in its
discretion by written notice to the County, remove any real or personal property
from the Negotiated FILOT (as defined in Section 5.01) set forth in this
Agreement, and thereafter such property will be considered Non-Qualifying
Property and will be subject to FILOT Payments as set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof.

ARTICLE V

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Act, the parties hereby agree that, during the Term
of the Agreement, the Company and any Co-Investors shall pay annually, with respect to
the Project, a FILOT in the amount calculated as set forth in this Section, to be collected
and enforced in accordance with Section 12-44-90 of the Act.

(b) The FILOT Payment due with respect to each Property Tax Year shall
equal:

{i) With respect to any portion of the Project consisting of Non-
Qualifying Property, if any, as long as such property is located in the Multi-County
Park, a payment equal to the ad valorem taxes that would otherwise be due on such
Non-Qualifying Property if it were taxable giving effect to all credits, exemptions,
rebates and abatement that would be available if such undeveloped land or Non-
Qualifying Property were taxable; and

(ii) With respect to those portions of the Project consisting of
Economic Development Property, for each of the thirty (30) consecutive years
following the year in which such portion of the Project is placed in service, a
payment calculated each year as set forth in paragraphs (¢) and (d) of this Section

5.01 (a “Negotiated FILOT™).

(¢} The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall be calculated with respect to each
Property Tax Year based on: (i) the fair market value (determined in accordance with
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Code) for (A) any real property component of the
Economic Development Property constructed or purchased in an arm’s length transaction
determined by Department of Revenue using the original income tax basis for South
Carolina income tax purposes without regard to depreciation, otherwise the real property
must be reported at the fair market value for ad valorem property taxes as determined by
appraisal, with the fair market value estimate established for the first year of the
Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to such property remaining the fair market
value of such real property for the entire Term hereof, and (B) the personal property
component of the Economic Development Property determined by Department of
Revenue using the original tax basis for South Carolina income tax purposes less
depreciation allowable for property tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-

15



50(A)(1)(¢) of the Code); (ii} a fixed millage rate equal to the Project Millage Rate, for
the entire Term of this Agreement; and (/i/) an assessment ratio of 6%. All such
calculations shall take into account all deductions for depreciation or diminution in value
allowed by the Code or by the tax laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would
have been applicable if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the
exemption allowed pursuant to Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State
of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Sections 12-37-220(B)(32)
and (34) of the Code.

(d)  Special Source Revenue Credits shall be provided in the amount of forty
percent (40%) of each annual FILOT Payment, for each year of the Term. Such Special
Source Revenue Credits shall be applied automatically and reflected on each year’s
property tax bill provided to the Company.

(e) The FILOT payments are to be recalculated:

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Co-
Investor disposes of any part of the Project within the meaning of Section 12-44-
50(B) of the Code and as provided in Section 4.03 hereof, by the amount
applicable to the Released Property;

(it} to increase such payments, based on the methodology set forth in
Section 5.01(c) hereof, in the event the Company or any Co-Investor adds property
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project; or

(iii) to adjust such payments if the Company or any Co-Investor elects
to convert any portion of the Project from the Negotiated FILOT to the FILOT
required by Section 5.01(b)(i) above, as permitted by Section 4.03(a)(iii).

(f) To the extent permitted by law, because the FILOT Payments agreed to
herein are intended to be paid by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County in lieu
of taxes, it is agreed that said FILOT Payments shall not, as to any year, be in any amount
greater than what would otherwise be payable by the Company or such Co-Investor to the
County in property taxes if the Company or such Co-Investor had not entered into a fee-
in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the County (except it is not intended that said FILOT
Payments would necessarily be less than such property taxes to the extent that the
constitutional abatement of property taxes would otherwise apply).

(80 Upon the Company’s or any Co-Investor’s installation of any
Replacement Property for any portion of the Project removed under Section 4.03 hereof
and sold, scrapped, or disposed of by the Company or such Co-Investor, such
Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT Payments to the fullest
extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules:

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as
the Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the FILOT, whether real or

16



personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated
FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing. More than one piece of property can
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to
payments equal to the ad valorem taxes which would have been paid on such
property but for this Agreement. Replacement property is entitled to the FILOT
payment for the period of time remaining on the thirty-year FILOT period for the
property which it is replacing.

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the Negotiated
FILOT payment shall be recorded using its income tax basis, and the Negotiated
FILOT Payment shall be calculated using the millage rate and assessment ratio
provided on the original property subject to FILOT payment.

(h)  In the event that the Act or the FILOT or any portion thereof, are declared,
by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the Company and the County express
their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company the
maximum benefit then permitted by law, including, without limitation, the benefits
afforded under Section 12-44-50 of the Code and, specifically, that the Company may, at
the Company’s expense, exercise the rights granted by Section 12-44-160 of the Code
upon terms and conditions (including evidence acceptable to the County that the Project
is free from environmental contamination and mutually agreeable environmental
indemnifications and warranties by the Company) acceptable to the County and the
Company. If the Project is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to
the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County agree that the Company shall
pay an alternate fee-in-lieu of tax calculated in the manner set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof. In such event, the Company shall be entitled, to the extent permitted by law: (i)
to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in lieu of taxes) provided
by Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, and any
other exemption allowed by law; and (if) to enjoy all allowable depreciation. The
Company agrees that if the FILOT Payments or this Agreement is reformed pursuant to
this subsection (h), that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or
pay any monies to the Company.

(i) For the Project, this Agreement is automatically terminated in the event
that the investment in the Project in land, buildings, and personal property, including
machinery and equipment, by the Company does not exceed Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) by the end of the Investment Period. If terminated
pursuant to this subsection (i), the Negotiated FILOT Payments shall revert retroactively
to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem taxes would have been with respect to the
property absent this Agreement. At the time of termination, the Company shall pay to the
County an additional fee equal to the difference between the total amount of property

17



taxes that would have been paid by the Company had the project been taxable, taking into
account exemptions from property taxes that would have been available to the Company,
and the total amount of fee payments actually made by the Company. This additional
amount is subject to interest as provided in Section 12-54-25. The Company agrees, if
the Negotiated FILOT Payments revert to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem
taxes would be pursuant to this subsection (i), that under no circumstance shall the
County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company,

()] In the event that the Company fails to meet and maintain the Project
Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period as provided herein
(without regard to any subsequent extensions thereof), the Company shall be obligated to
repay a prorated portion of the Special Source Revenue Credits provided under Section
5.01(d) hereof theretofore received by the Company with respect to the qualifying
property, and the amount of Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company
thereafter shall be so reduced with such prorated portion to be calculated by determining
the achievement percentage of the Project Commitment as of the last day of the
Investment Period.

(k)  For example, and by way of example only, if the Company invested
$156,782,500 as of the last day of the Investment Period, the Company would have met
85% of the Project Commitment and would be obligated to repay 15% of the Special
Source Revenue Credits provided under Section 5.01(d) hereof, and the amount of
Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company thereafter would be reduced by
15%. Unless otherwise provided by the Act, any amounts due to the County under this
Section 5.01 by virtue of the application of Sections 5.01(i) hereof shall be paid within
ninety (90) days, following written notice thereof from the County to the Company or
Co-Investor, as applicable.

()] The Company agrees to make FILOT Payments with respect to the
Economic Development Property that it owns for each Property Tax Year during the term
hereof beginning with the Property Tax Year following the year the applicable Economic
Development Property is first placed in service. The FILOT Payments shall be made to
the Jasper County Treasurer on the due dates which would otherwise be applicable for ad
valorem property taxes for the Economic Development Property, with the first payment
being due on the first date following the delivery of this Agreement when, but for this
Agreement, such taxes would have been paid with respect to the Economic Development
Property.

(m) To the extent required by Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, if the
Company claims Special Source Revenue Credits as reimbursement for investment in
personal property, including machinery and equipment, if such property is removed from
the Project during the term of this Agreement, the amount of the FILOT Payments due
from the Company on such personal property for the year in which the personal property
was removed from the Project also shall be due for the two (2) years following such
removal.

18



(n)  The Company agrees to provide or cause to be provided all funding for the
costs of acquisition, construction, and installation of Infrastructure Improvements (as
defined in the Act) for which reimbursement is being provided by the Special Source
Revenue Credits. In accordance with the Act, such Special Source Revenue Credits shall
not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of the Infrastructure Improvements
funded from time to time by the Company.

(0)  The County and the Company acknowledge and agree that any obligation
which the County may incur for the payment of money as a result of the transactions
described in the herein, including providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, shall
never constitute an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State
constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never create a pecuniary liability
of the County or a charge upon its general credit or against its taxing powers but shall be
payable solely out of the funds received by it under this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI

PAYMENTS BY COMPANY

Section 6.01. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make
any of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall
continue as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.
The Company agrees that the collection and enforcement of the defaulted payment shall be as
provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. The Company expressly acknowledges that in the
event of its failure to make the required FILOT Payments when due, that the County is only
required to give notice thereof in accordance with the Section 12-44-90 of the Code, and that no
further notice is required hereunder in order to enforce the remedies set forth in this Section 6.01,
including any notices of default set forth in Article XI hereof. The County’s right to receive
FILOT Payments shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Code
and Chapters 4 and 54 of Title 12 of Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

ARTICLE VII

CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or
Condemnation. In the event that the Project or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost
or stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, the Company, in its sole discretion, may
determine whether or not to repair or replace the same. The parties hereto agree that if the
Company decides not to repair or replace all or any portion of the Project pursuant to this
Section, the FILOT required pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof shall be abated in the same manner
and in the same proportion as if ad valorem taxes were payable with respect to the Project.

19



ARTICLE VHI

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project for any lawful purpose that is authorized pursuant
to the Act.

Section 8.02. Indemnification. The Company releases the County, including the
members of the governing body of the County, and the employees, officers, attorneys and agents
of the County (herein collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) from, agrees that the
Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold the Indemnified Parties harmless
against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be
occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the Company’s performance of its obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, except for that occasioned by grossly negligent or intentional acts of
an Indemnified Party, or by a breach of this Agreement by the County. The Company further
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnified Parties against and from any and all costs,
liabilities, expenses, and claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in
the performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or arising from any act or negligence of, or negligent
failure to act where there is a duty to do so, by the Company, and from and against all cost,
liability, and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim or action or proceeding
brought thereon.

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County
contained herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and
obligations of the County and not of any member of the County Council or any officer, agent,
attorney, servant, or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity, and, absent bad
faith, no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder or the performance of
any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein contained or for any claims based
thereon against any member of the governing body of the County or any officer, attorney, agent,
servant, or employee of the County.

Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the Indemnified Parties hereto that none
of them shall incur any pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, any related
agreements or the undertakings required of the County hereunder by reason of the performance
of any act requested of the County by the Company, including all clairs, liabilities, or losses
arising in connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing,
nevertheless, if any Indemnified Party shall incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event
the Company shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any
Person, firm, or corporation or other legal entity arising out of the same and all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or
proceeding brought thereon, provided, however, that nothing herein shall absolve the
Indemnified Parties from, or entitle the Indemnified Parties to indemnification from, any
obligation such Indemnified Party has specifically agreed to undertake (including, without
limitation, the obligation to place and maintain the Land within a multi-county park). If any
action, suit, or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party to which such Indemnified

20



Party is entitled to indemnification, such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Company,
and the Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense
thereof, at its expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole
discretion; provided the Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle
any such claim unless such claim is for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability
to, and do, pay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the
event the County reasonably believes there are defenses available to it that are not being pursued
or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably determines that a conflict of interest
exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its sole discretion, hire
independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for the
reasonable cost of such counsel.

The indemnity specified in this Section shall be in addition to any heretofore extended by
the Company to any Indemnified Party and shall survive the termination of this Agreement with
respect to liability arising out of any event or act occurring prior to such termination.

Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate,
from time to time, other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections
12-44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and other Co-
Investors and make investments with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of
such investments, who agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who
shall be Affiliates of Company or other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, any tenant leasing all or
a portion of the Project from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or
other Persons described in Section 9.01 hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who
otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the
Simplified FILOT Act are subject to approval in accordance with Section 12-44-130(D) of the
Act. To the extent that the aggregate investment in the Project by the end of the Investment
Period by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeds $5,000,000.00, to the extent permitted by
Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Aect, all investment by such Sponsors and Sponsor
Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of
this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) regardiess of whether each such
entity invested amounts equal to the Investment Commitment by the end of the Investment
Period. Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue
with written notice of any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section
8.04 in accordance with Section 12-44-130(C) of the Simplified FILOT Act. The parties agree
that, if any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate ceases to become party to this Agreement, the
Agreement shall continue to remain in effect with respect to any remaining Sponsors or Sponsor
Affiliates.

Section 8.04. Compliance with GASB 77. The Company agrees annually to
prepare Form SC DOR PT-300G (Schedule G — Fee in Lieu of Tax Supplemental) with respect
to the Project, even if the Company is not required to file such form with the Department of
Revenue, and provide a copy to the County not later than June 30 of each year of the Term of
this Agreement in order to assist the County in complying with Statement No. 77 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board known as “GASB 77.” The Company agrees further

21



to cooperate with the County in providing reasonably requested information regarding the
Project in order to assist the County in complying with GASB 77.

ARTICLE [X

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS

Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment. The Company

and any Co-Investor may at any time: (a) assign or transfer all or any of its rights and interests
hereunder or with respect to the Project to any Person; or (b) enter into any lending, financing,
security, or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements with any financing entity
with respect to the Agreement or the Project, including without limitation any sale, leaseback, or
other financing lease arrangement; provided that, in connection with any of the foregoing
transfers: (/) except in connection with any assignment or transfer to any Affiliate of the
Company or such Co-Investor, or transfers pursuant to clause (b) above, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, any assignment or transfer to any entity that assumes from the Company the
purchase agreement with respect to the Land (as to which such transfers the County hereby
consents), the Company or such Co-Investor shall first obtain the prior written approval or
subsequent ratification of the County, in the County’s sole discretion, and evidenced, to the
extent allowed by law, by a Resolution of County Council or a writing signed by an officer of the
County; (ii) the Company or the applicable Co-Investor, transferee, or financing entity shall,
within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department
of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (i) the Company or
the applicable Co-Investor and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the
Transfer Provisions.

The Company acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest under this Agreement or in
the Project may cause the Project to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in
penalties under the Act absent compliance by the Company with the Transfer Provisions.

Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured
Parties. The parties acknowledge the application of the provisions of Section 12-44-90 of the

Act, and that the County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall be the same as its
rights conferred under Title 12, Chapter 49 and 54, among others, of the Code relating to the
collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes.

ARTICLE X

TERM; TERMINATION

Section 10.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and
provisions herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a
term commencing on the date on which the Company executes this Agreement, and ending at
midnight on the last day of the Property Tax Year in which the last Negotiated FILOT Payment
is due hereunder. This Agreement has a term of thirty (30) years, as calculated pursuant to the
respective dates when the relevant portions of the Project are placed in service, and as discussed
in greater detail in this Agreement. The County’s rights to receive indemnification and payment

22



of Administration Expenses pursuant hereto shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

Section 10.02. Termination.

(a) The County and the Company may agree to terminate this Agreement at
any time, or the Company may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time upon
providing the County thirty (30) days’ notice of such termination, in which event the
Project shall be subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. In the event
that this Agreement is terminated by the operation of this Section 10.02 at any time
during the initial Investment Period prior to the Company’s investment of at least Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in the Project, amounts due to
the County as a result thereof shall be calculated as provided in Section 5.01(i) hereof.
The County’s rights to receive payment for such ad valorem taxes and its rights to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement,

(b)  This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-
44-140(B) of the Act in the event the investment requirements at the Project set forth in
Section 12-44-140(B) of the Act are not satisfied.

(c) The FILOT incentive with respect to any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate will
automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-44-140(C) of the Act in the event such
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate no longer has the statutory minimum level of investment at
the Project.

(d)  This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event the
Company or any other Co-Investor removes real or personal property from the
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(iii) hereof (with such termination effective
solely with respect to such removed property).

(e) This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section
5.01(i) hereof.

(f) This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event of casualty
or condemnation at the Project and the FILOT is abated pursuant to Section 7.01 hereof
(with such termination effective solely with respect to the property subject to such
casualty or condemnation).

23



ARTICLE XI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events of Default by Company.

(a)  Any one or more of the following events (herein called an “Event of
Default”, or coilectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute an Event of Default (but
solely with respect to the defaulting entity):

(D if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any FILOT
Payments,

(2) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any
indemnification payments or Administration Expenses, which default shall not
have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof
from the County;

(3)  if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or
compliance with any of the terms hereof, including payment, other than those
referred to in the foregoing paragraphs (1) and (2), and such default shall continue
for sixty (60) days after the County shall have given the Company written notice
of such default, provided, the Company shall have such longer period of time as
necessary to cure such default if the Company proceeds promptly to cure such
default and thereafter to prosecute the curing of such default with due diligence;
and provided further, that no Event of Default shall exist under this paragraph (3)
during any period when there is pending, before any judicial or administrative
tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the Company has contested
the occurrence of such default.

(4) if any material representation or warranty on the part of the Company or
any Co-Investor made herein (including representations regarding the capital
investment resulting from the Project), or in any report, certificate, financial or
other statement furnished in connection with this Agreement or the transactions
described in this Agreement shall have been false or misleading in any material
respect.

(b The failure of the Company or any other Co-Investor to meet the
Investment Commitment as set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default
under this Agreement, and the County’s sole recourse for failure to meet the Investment
Requirement shall be as set forth in Section 5.01 hereof.

Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence
and continuance of any Event of Default by Company (and the expiration of any applicable cure
periods), the County may exercise any of the following remedies, any of which may be exercised
at any time during the periods permitted under the following clauses:

24



(a) terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not
less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified therein; or

(b)  take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to enforce
observance or performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement of the Company
under this Agreement.

Section 11.03. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
including without limitation, a suit for mandamus or specific performance.

Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any
warranty, covenant, or agreement contained in this Agreement should be breached by the
Company or the County and thereafter waived by the other party to this Agreement, such waiver
shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
breach.

Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Co-Investor or
Sponsor Affiliate, if the County employs attorneys or incurs other reasonable expenses for the
collection of payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of
any obligation or agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand
therefor, to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable
expenses so incurred.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumnulative. Each right, power, and remedy
of the County or of the Company or any other Co-Investor provided for in this Agreement shall
be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power or remedy
provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any
Jurisdiction where such rights, powers and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise
by the County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any one or more of the rights,
powers or remedies provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the
County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any or all such other rights, powers or
remedies.

Section 12.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.

25



Section 12.03. Administration Expenses. The Company agrees to reimburse the
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request
therefore, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after receiving the written request from the
County. The written request shall include a description of the nature of the Administration
Expenses. The Administration Expenses reimbursable to the County pursuant to this Agreement
for the initial drafting and negotiation of this Agreement and related documentation shall not
exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).Section 12.04 Rules of Construction. The County
and the Company acknowledge and agree that each has been represented by legal counsel of its
choice throughout the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, that each has participated in
the drafting hereof and that this Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either
party solely on the basis of such party’s drafting or participation in the drafting of any portion of
this Agreement.

Section 12.05. Notices; Demands; Requests. All notices, demands and requests
to be given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall
be deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid
or via facsimile or other commonly-used electronic transmission or reputable courier service,
addressed as follows or to such other persons and places as may be designated in writing by such

party.
(a) As to the County:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Administrator
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Attorney
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

(b)  Asto the Company:

CP Hardeeville, LLC

c/o Clarius Partners, LLC

Attn: Craig Dannegger

200 W. Madison St., Suite 1625
Chicago, Illinois 60606

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP
Attn: Ms. Stephanie L. Yarbrough
5 Exchange Street

26



Charleston, South Carolina 29401

Section 12.06. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Section 12.07. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is
not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the
execution and delivery hereof.

Section 12.08. Severability. In the event that any clause or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement
are references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement,

Section 12.10. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Section 12.11. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Act, this
Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the parties hereunder surrendered, only
by a writing signed by all parties. The County agrees that, to the extent allowed by law, such
amendment may be approved by a Resolution of County Council.

Section 12.12. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party
with any term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 12.13. Force Majeure. Except with respect to (i) the obligation to invest
at least Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the Investment Period; and (ii) the payment obligations with respect to
FILOT Payments, the Administrative Expenses and indemnification of the Indemnified Parties
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investors shall not be responsible for any delays or non-
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight
embargoes, labor shortages, fire, floods, inability to obtain materials, war or national emergency,
acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company’s reasonable
control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

27



IN WITNESS THEREOQF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has
caused this Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Council Chair and to be
attested by the Clerk to Council; and the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by
its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By: -
Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
CP HARDEEVILLE, LLC
By:
Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to FILOT Agreement]



EXHIBIT A

Land

All those certain properties consisting of the Monroe Tract (TMS ## 038-00-04-059 and 039-00-
03-004).



AGENDA ITEM:
XI-C

Ordinance iteny C



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-30

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN SDKM COMMERCE, LLC (FORMERLY KNOWN
TO THE COUNTY AS “PROJECT DOLPHIN”) (THE “COMPANY”) AND JASPER
COUNTY, WHEREBY JASPER COUNTY WILL ENTER INTO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT WITH THE COMPANY AND PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT BY THE
COMPANY OF CERTAIN FEES-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FEES-IN-LIEU OF TAXES
PAYABLE UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MULTI-
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING
THERETO.

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County™), acting by and through its County
Council (the “County Council”) is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions
of Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “FILOT
Act”), to designate real and tangible personal property as “economic development property” and to
enter into an arrangement which provides for payments-in-lieu of taxes (“FILOT Payments”) for a
project qualifying under the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through the County Council, is further authorized and
empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “the MCIP Act”) to provide for payments-in-
lieu of taxes with respect to property located in a multi-county business or industrial park created
under the MCIP Act and to permit investors to claim special source credits against their FILOT
Payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and
improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment,
used or to be used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance
the economic development of Jasper County (“Infrastructure Improvements”); and to create, in
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county park in order to afford certain
enhanced tax credits to such investors and facilitate the grant of special source or infrastructure
improvement credits; and

WHEREAS, SDKM Commerce, LLC (referred to herein as the “Company™) is considering an
industrial development at a site located in the City of Hardeeville (“City”) in Jasper County by
acquiring and constructing real property and real property improvements (the “Project”) which the
Company estimates will likely consist of a capital investment of at least Twenty-Three Million
Four Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($23,490,000.00).

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a Fee Agreement with the Company, as the
Company has expressed its intent to the County to make a capital investment in the County (i.e.,
the Project);

WHEREAS, the Project is located entirely within Jasper County and, with the consent of the
Partner County (as defined herein) and the City of Hardeeville, will be included in and subject to

WBD (US) 54578289v6



the multi-county park and fee-in-lieu of tax arrangements as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the County has made specific proposals, including proposals to offer certain
economic development incentives set forth herein, for the purpose of inducing the Company to
invest its funds to acquire and equip the Project (the “Incentives™); and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest, for the public benefit and in furtherance of the public
purposes of the FILOT Act and the MCIP Act that the County Council provide approval for
qualifying the Project under the FILOT Act and the entire Project under the MCIP Act for the
Incentives;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. Evaluation of the Project. The County Council has evaluated the Project on the
following criteria based upon the advice and assistance of the South Carolina Department of
Revenue:

(a) whether the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and
public purposes;

(b) the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made; and
(c) the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
Section 2. Findings by County Council. Based upon information provided by and
representations of the Company, County Council’s investigation of the Project, including the

criteria described in Section 1 above, and the advice and assistance of the South Carolina
Department of Revenue, as required, County Council hereby find that:

(a) the Project constitutes a “project” as that term is defined in the FILOT Act;

(b) the Project will serve the purposes of the FILOT Act;

(c) the Company anticipates an investment of at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred
Ninety Dollars ($23,490,000.00) within eight (8) years from the end of the property tax
year in which the Company and the County execute the FILOT Agreement (as defined
herein);

(d) the Project will be located entirely within the County;

(¢) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services,
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally;

(f) the Project will not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or any municipality nor a
charge against its general credit or taxing power of the County or any municipality;

WBD (US) 54578289v6



(g) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public
purposes;

(h) the inducement of the location of the Project is of paramount importance; and
(i) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public.

Section 3. Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Arrangement. Pursuant to the authority of the FILOT Act,
the Project is hereby designated as “economic development property” under the FILOT Act and
there is hereby authorized a fee-in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the Company for a term of thirty
(30) years, which will provide FILOT Payments to be made with respect to the Project based upon
a 6% assessment ratio and a millage rate which shall be fixed for the full term of the agreement at
457.0 mills, and including Special Source Revenue Credits in the amount of 40% of the Project for
each year of the Term (as defined in the FILOT Agreement), subject to reduction at the County’s
discretion based on failure to achieve certain investment thresholds during the investment period,
all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement by and between the Company and the County (the
“FILOT Agreement”).

Section 4. Extension of Investment Period. The Company has represented to the County
that it does not anticipate completing the Project within five (5) years of the last day of the property
tax year during which economic development property is first placed in service (the “Investment
Period”). Accordingly, the Company has applied to the County for an extension of time to
complete the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act. The County hereby
extends the Investment Period by three (3) additional years; provided however that there is no
extension of the period for meeting the minimum statutory investment requirement as specified in
Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act.

Section 5. Execution of the Fee Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the FILOT
Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk of the County Council be and hereby
are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein
by reference as if such FILOT Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety, The Chair
of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the FILOT Agreement in the name
and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the FILOT Agreement to be delivered to the
Company. The FILOT Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and
hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of
the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their
approval of all changes therein from the form of FILOT Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 6. Multi-County Park.

(a) The County, in cooperation with Hampton County (the “Partner County”) and subject to
the consent of the City of Hardeeville, which consent has been provided pursuant to that
certain Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of November 5, 2021 between Jasper
County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (the “2021 IGA™), hereby designates

WBD (US) 54578289v6



the site of the Project as a multi-county park (the “Park”) pursuant to Article VIIL, Section
13 of the Constitution of South Carolina, the MCIP Act, and the terms of that certain
Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business Park by and between
the County and the Partner County and dated as of even date herewith or the date of the
Partner County’s approval of said Agreement (the “MCIP Agreement”). In the FILOT
Agreement, the County will agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain
such designation throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement.

(b) Pursuant to the terms of the MCIP Act and the MCIP Agreement, the County hereby
provides that throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement, the annual allocation of the
fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes payable by the Company to the County in accordance with
the terms of the MCIP Agreement, after deducting any amounts distributed to the Partner
County, will be distributed as follows:

a. To the County, for providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, an amount equal
to the annual Special Source Revenue Credits provided in Section 3 of this
Ordinance and in the FILOT Agreement; and

b. After making the allocations under paragraph (a) of this Section, Park Revenues (as
defined in the MCIP Agreement) derived from the Project shall be distributed in
accordance with the MCIP Agreement and allocable to the County as the “Host
County” under the MCIP Agreement in accordance with that certain
Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 5™, 2021 between the County and
the City.

Section 7. Miscellaneous.

(@) The Chair and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to
execute, deliver and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by
the County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized
by this Ordinance,

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State
of South Carolina.

(¢) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following its third
reading by the County Council.

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section,
phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of
the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

(e) All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the
conflict, hereby repealed.

WBD (US) 54578289v6



[Signature Page to Follow]

WBD (US) 54578289v6



ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of , 2022,

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

First Reading: October 4, 2021

Second Reading: January 18, 2022
Public Hearing: February 7, 2022
Third Reading: February 7, 2022

WBD (US) 54578289v6



WBD Draft of 2.14.22

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER ) OF MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/

) BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK)
COUNTY OF HAMPTON )

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK) for the establishment of a multi-county
industrial/business park to be located within Jasper County and Hampton County is made and entered into as
of » 2022, by and between Jasper County, South Carolina (“Jasper County”) and Hampton County,
South Carolina (“Hampton County™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Jasper County and Hampton County are contiguous counties which, pursuant to
Ordinance No. , enacted by Jasper County Council on February 22, 2022, and Ordinance No.
enacted by Hampton County Council on , 2022, have each determined that, in

order to promote economic development and thus encourage mvestment and provide additional employment
opportunities within both of said counties, there should be established in Jasper County a multi-county
industrial/business park (the “Park™), to be located upon property more particularly described in Exhibit A

{Jasper); and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park and
all property having a situs therein is exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees
in an amount equivalent to the property taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and
payable except for such exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the entire
agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Jasper County and Hampton County, their successors
and assigns.

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution provides that
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical
boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are met
and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a manner in
which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded indebtedness of political
subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to
any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school district to support its schools
based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as compared to the assessed valuation of
taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. The Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Code”) and particularly, Section 4-1-170 thereof, satisfies the conditions imposed by Article
VI, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a multi-
county industrial or business park may be created.

3. Location of the Park.

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Drafi of 2.14.22
(A) The Park consists of property that is located in Jasper County and which now or will be
owned by project sponsors for the purpose of establishing industrial, distribution and/or commercial
facilities, the property being more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto. It is specifically recognized
that the Park may from time to time consist of non-contiguous properties within Jasper County. The
boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County (“Jasper Approval”), and resolution of the county council of Hampton
County (“Hampton Approval”). Except as permitted by the Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of
November 5, 2021 between Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (“2021 IGA™)
attached hereto as Exhibit B, if any property proposed for inclusion in the Park is located, at the time such
inclusion is proposed, within the boundaries of a municipality, then the municipality must give its consent
prior to the inclusion of the property in the Park.

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit A which shall
contain a legal description of the boundaries of the Park as enlarged or diminished, together with a copy
of Jasper Approval and the Hampton Approval pursuant to which such enlargement or diminution was
authorized.

© Prior to any Jasper Approval authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, a
public hearing shall first be held by Jasper County Council. Notice of such public hearing shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation in Jasper County, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior
to such hearing. Notice of such public hearing shall also be given by certified mail that is deposited with the
U.S. Postal Service at least fifteen (15) days prior to such public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable,
the lessee of any property which would be excluded from the Park by virtue of the diminution.

4. Fee in Lieu of Taxes.

(A) Pursuant to Article VIIL, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, all property
located in the Park is exempt from all ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of any property situated
in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount (referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and payable
but for the location of such property within the Park.

(B) The amount of the annual fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes may be reduced if the owner or
lessee of property located in the Park (i) has negotiated a fee in-lieu-of taxes arrangement with respect to
the property with Jasper County pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-10, et seq., 4-12-30, or 4-29-
67 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be
provided under South Carolina law, or (ii) receives a special source revenue or infrastructure credit with
respect to the property under the provisions of Section 4-1-175 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be provided under South Carolina law {collectively,
(i) and (ii), “Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreements™).

St Allocation of Expenses. Jasper County and Hampton County shall bear expenses incurred
in connection with the Park, including, but not limited to, those incurred in the administration, development,
operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park, in the following proportions:

A, Jasper County — 100%
B. Hampton County — 0%

6. Allocation of Revenues. Jasper County and Hampton County shall receive an allocation of
all revenues generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“Park
Revenues”) in the following proportions:

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
A, Jasper County — 99%
B. Hampton County — 1%

Any payment from Jasper County to Hampton County of Hampton County's allocable share of Park
Revenues shall be made and accompanied by a statement showing the manner in which total payment
and each County's share were calculated. If any Park Revenues are received by Jasper County through
payment by any owner, or any lessec/tenant, or any other taxpayer is made under protest, or otherwise
as part of a dispute, then Jasper County is not obligated to pay Hampton County more than Hampton
County's share of the undisputed portion of the Park Revenues until thirty (30) days after the final
resolution of the protest or dispute.

7. Revenue Allocation within Each County. Park Revenues received shall be distributed to
and within the County as follows:

(A)  Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes
shall be distributed to Jasper County and to Hampton County, as the case may be, according to the
proportions established by this Agreement. With respect to revenues allocable to Jasper County by way of
fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes generated from properties within the Park, such revenue shall be distributed
within Jasper County pursuant to the 2021 IGA.

(B}  With respect to revenues allocable to Hampton County by way of fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes generated from properties located in the Park, such revenue shall be distributed within Hampton
County in accordance with a distribution scheme established by the Hampton County Council and, in the
absence of any such adopted distribution scheme, on a pro rata basis to the millage levying entities in
Hampton County.

8. Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the Code. It is
hereby agreed that the entry by Jasper County into any one or more Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax
Agreements with respect to property located within the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be
at the sole discretion of Jasper County.

9. Consent by the City and Other Municipalities. In accordance with the Act, the City
of Hardeevilie, by Resolution No. 2021-11-4F and the terms of the 2021 IGA, has consented to the
location of the property within the City’s geographical boundaries in the Park as described on Exhibit A
as of the effective date of this agreement,

10. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Jasper County and Hampton County
and to each of the taxing entities within the participating counties shall be in accordance with the
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the counties and by each of the taxing entities
within the participating counties, pursuant to Sections 6 and 7 herein.

11. Governing Laws and Regulations. Any applicable ordinances and regulations of Jasper
County including those concerning zoning, health and safety, and building code requirements shall apply to
the Park properties located in the Jasper County portion of the Park unless any such property is within the
boundaries of a municipality in which case, the municipality's applicable ordinances and regulations shall

apply.

11. South Carolina Law Controlling. This Agreement has been entered into in the State of
South Carolina and shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with South Carolina law.

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Drafi of 2.14.22

12. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision

or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of

competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that
provision or any other provision of this Agreement.

13. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts.

14. Additional Parties. This Agreement may be amended from time to time to add additional
counties located in South Carolina, subject to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South
Carolina and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code, by ordinance of the county council of Jasper County, and by
resolution of the county council of Hampton County; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by
law, additional counties may be added as parties hereto with only the enactment of an ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County only in the event that such additional county's allocation of Park Revenues
hereunder shall be allocated solely out of Jasper County's residual net share of the Park Revenues provided
for its use and distribution pursuant to Section 7 hereof.

15. Term; Termination. Except as specifically provided in this Section 15, Jasper County
and Hampton County agree that this Agreement may not be terminated in its entirety by unilateral action
of any party and shall remain in effect for a period equal to the longer of (i) thirty-one (31) years
commencing with the effective date of this Agreement or (ii) a period of time of sufficient length to
facilitate any special source revenue credits due with respect to Park property. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time upon adoption of ordinances by the County Councils of both Jasper County and
Hampton County, which ordinances must specifically authorize the termination of this Agreement.

16. Law Enforcement Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority
and power within the boundaries of the Park properties is vested with the Sheriff's Office of Jasper County,
for matters within their jurisdiction. If any of the Park properties are within the boundaries of a
municipality, then jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise law enforcement jurisdiction is also vested with
the law enforcement officials of the municipality for matters within their jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the day
and the year first above written.

[signatures on following page]

WBD (US) 55374672v3



[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Jasper County, South Carolina

[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Hampton County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55374672v3

WBD Draft of 2.14.22

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chair, County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

HAMPTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By: _
Chair, County Council
Hampton County, South Carolina




WBD Draft of 2.14.22
Exhibit A (Jasper)
PARK PROPERTY

Lot 13, 26.48 Acres
A Section of Parcel C — West Parcel
A Portion of Hardeeville Commerce Park
City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being in

the City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

as shown on that certain survey prepared by Surveying Consultants,

by Terry G. Hatchell, S.C.R.L.S. No. 11059,

Entitled “A Minor Subdivision Survey of Lot 13, Parcel C — West North Parcel &
Parcel C — West South Parcel, City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina”,
Dated: 07/06/2021,

and being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a point marked by a 3” Concrete Monument (Found) at the intersection of the
Southern Right-of-Way of Paynesville Road (aka State Road S-27-156) and the

Western Right-of-Way of Mockingbird Drive,

said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 162,050.840 E. 1,973,462.190

said point being the Point of Commencing,

From the Point of Commencing in a Westerly direction as follows:

Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 174.82° to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),
Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 14.10” to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),

Thence S 01°08'38" W A Distance Of 350.23” to a 1/2” Iron Pipe (Found),
Thence S 01°11'16" W A Distance Of 511.18’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 135.95’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 65°13'59" W A Distance Of 67.44” to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 00°33'04" W A Distance Of 218.99° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 120.87’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 89°35'35" W A Distance Of 47.03” to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 497.01°,

a Radius 0f 420.61°, a Tangent of 188.30°, a Chord Length of 354.73°,

a Chord Bearing of S 66°17'22" W, and a Delta Angle of 48°14'06"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 160,673.440 E. 1,972,869.061
Said point being the Point of Beginning,

From the Point of Beginning in a Southerly direction as follows:
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 297.94°,
a Radius 0f 420.61°, a Tangent of 155.53", a Chord Length of 291.75°,

a Chord Bearing of S 2152'45" W, and a Delta Angle of 40°35'10"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
Thence S 01°35'10" W A Distance Of 717.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 103.39°,
a Radius of 350.00’, a Tangent of 52.08’, a Chord Length of 103.02°,
a Chord Bearing of § 06°52'37" E, and a Delta Angle of 16°55'33"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 15°20'24" E A Distance Of 137.38' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence along a Curve to the right having an Arc Length of 47.24°,
a Radius of 250.00°, a Tangent of 23.69°, a Chord Length of 47.12°,
a Chord Bearing of S 09°55'34" E, and a Delta Angle of 10°49'39"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 04°30'45" E A Distance Of 14.42' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 85°58'12" W A Distance Of 314.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 63°44'29" W A Distance Of 145.19' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Thence N 57°59'41" W A Distance Of 180.16' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 30°57'50" W A Distance Of 121.48' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 31°40'51" W A Distance Of 875.96' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 32°42'55" E A Distance Of 489.04' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence S 88°48'35" W A Distance Of 699.36' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence S 57°17'78" W A Distance Of 268.58" to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point being the Point of Beginning,
Said lot having an area of 26.48 Acres, more or less

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 2.14.22
Exhibit B

Intergovernmental Agreement

WBD (US) 55374672v3



Draft — February 14, 2022

FEE AGREEMENT
by and between
SDKM COMMERCE, LLC
and
JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Dated as of February 22, 2022

WBD (LIS) 5457651 1v7



Table of Contents

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION ..ot 5
Section 1.01, Statutorily Required Recapitulation ..........ccoviiviiiiinsiciniicei e cssesiesseseene s >
SeCHON 102, DI I OIS s o e e T i B s M 6
Section 1,03, References t0 ABICRMENT. ..........oivciiiriiriiiis i seses e ssssessesssseasssssrseesssssenes 10

ARTICLE Il REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES........cooiinircereisisessr e amenese e 10
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by COUunty ..........c..coveeriiiieerierinseesieeeesseesessnnes 10
Section 2,02, Representations and Warranties by the COmMPany ..........c...ocovuveeeeeevcicnreseecenrnes 10

ARTICLE Il UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY ....cooiiiiiiiiniriinsesesscscesiessssssressssesesssnsssan 11
Section 3.01  Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes.............c.cocovvrrenennn 11
Section 3.02: No Warranties by COUBLY, wiiiiininimiuiimibmmaeinaiiim i 12
Section 3.03  INVALIAILY ...cociiiiriiiiiinr e e e s st e e e en e 12
Section 3.04  Multi-County Park STatUS............covvirioirie it ee e eeeeseeaeee s sesssssessssssnas 13

ARTICLE 1V UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY ....ccciuiiairieniiomissosssssssiomsriiisssiviansnssssisniic 13
Section 4.01. Investment by Company in PIOJECL...........ccuieeerureeseieescsiesesssesssessessseessnresssnsesens 13
Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing ........cocvioiiiimrrcsec et 13
Section 4.03. ModifICation OF PIOIECT ;... iwssisusssrens sisisavsist irsssinsonsiasinms sbisimssssinmis sissiiabinds inie 14

ARTICLE N PAYMENES IN:EIEU OF TAXES: i i f i b e i it 15
Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem TaXes ......coovoeiveooeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo s eesseans 15

ARTICLE VIPAYMENTS BY COMPANY ...t e sss s e e 19
Section 6. 0L Diefanlted PavMEntE . immmmimimmm oo aee i e o ing 19

ARTICLE VII CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION ..........ccccivmmmsamnimmainisisismmmsssssssssssrase 19
Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or Condemnation...........19

ARTICLE VIII PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS.........ocooovirnirecssssensens 20
Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful ACtiVIties.......c.ivrriiriiiinneeieeeeeressessssssssssssssessssssssnes 20
Section .02 Indetnifieations: s itd Bb ity e agtes 20
Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor AffIALES..........coeveecriecii s 21
Séetion B.04: Compliante With GIASE T wia oo s sssicssiugiaimstiseiin s dliaihe sttt 21

ARTICLE IX FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS .......... 22
Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; ASSIZAMENt.....cc.oovereeevcueeeererererreisrssensnns 22
Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured Parties ................22

ARTICLE X TERM FERMINETTON ..coo. v st s s e s s bbasii 22

2



Secton 1 0:02. T ermERatON . o i e e v e L S e s 23
ARTICLE XI EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ..........cccoiimineieceesssseesesssenens 24
Section 11.01. Events of Default by COMPANY.......coovevimuiiecieee e csiesssesnessessesseesssnsssssenes 24
Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company .........ccoovviiviniiisiiinicisse e 24
Sestion: LE03-Default by Comnby . i e e rir i e A i B 25
Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver..........c.ooecevcvceeesceiinecvreranne,s 25
Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses ...................25
ARTICLE XM MISCEEEANECRIS it i i da i s Bt e s 25
Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative............oooocinininininiicicsese s e ssessenen 25
Section 12,02, Successors and ASSIZNS .......coviiriiiiiiiriiieresieeis e ses st s s s s e sassss s sesssesons 25
Section-12.03. Adminietranion EXDBIEES. ..o st ben S vt i 26
Section. 12105: MNotices; Demande; Bagieste i m o mitam a  aT: 26
Section 12.06. Applicable LaW ..ottt ee s et n e neaen 27
Section 12.07. Entire Understanding .........ccecoveeeeoeeereeenieonccesns i cssis s ss e reenses e ees e ans 27
SECUON FZI0B: SePeraDIIITY i covciasinm s o ity i i S e R v e 27
Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References..........ocovccueeercciinnisinsiinnnn. 27
Section 12.10. Multiple COUNTEIPATS .......oceirrireriiiiesiieiisiee s eessseessiessas st sssessssessssssseenens 27
SECHON N2 Lk ATETANTRETNS. x, s s nusisss dmonss e s e SR P i s 27
SECHON: T2 12N RIVEE v st misn S bR v 3 e S B e T S TS 27
Secton 12 13, Force M e i i i A G i i o T e mremenasansmn At vm s app 27



FEE AGREEMENT

This FEE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated as of February 22, 2022 by and
between SDKM Commerce, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company™), and
Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the
State of South Carolina (the “County™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council™), is
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the
“Act”) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (the
“Code”) and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-172, and 4-1-175 of the Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D)
of the South Carolina Constitution (the “Multi-County Park Act™): (i) to enter into agreements
with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain industrial and
commercial properties through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina
will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to
locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and thus utilize and employ the workforce,
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; {(ii) to covenant with such investors to
accept certain payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the project (a “FILOT”); (iii)
to maintain, create or expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county
industrial park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; and (iv)
permit investors to claim special source credits against FILOT payments to reimburse such
investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used or to be used in the
operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic
development of the County;

WHEREAS, the Company proposes to purchase and develop the Project (as defined
herein) within the County;

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that the Project will result in an investment of
Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($23,490,000.00) in the County;

WHEREAS, as a result of the Company locating certain operations in the County, the
Company requested that the County complete the FILOT arrangement by entering into this
Agreement with the Company pursuant to the Act, and the Company elects to enter into such
FILOT arrangement with the County in an effort to encompass the terms surrounding the Project
and allowing the Company to make FILOT Payments pursuant to the Act;

WHEREAS, for the Project, the parties have also determined that the Company is a
Sponsor, and that the Project constitutes Economic Development Property, each within the
meaning of the Act; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes set forth above, the County has determined that it is in the
best interests of the County to enter into this Agreement with the Company, subject to the terms
and conditions herein set forth.

4



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafter contained, and the sum of $1.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to the County,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Company
agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION

Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation.

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act, the County and the Company
agree to waive the recapitulation requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Act.
Subsection (b) of this section is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a
part of this Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Act.

(b) Summary of Agreement:

1. Legal name of each initial party to this Agreement:

SDKM Commerce, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Jasper County, South Carolina

2. County, street address, parcel number or other location identifier of the
Project and property to be subject to this Agreement:

See Exhibit A

3. Minimum investment agreed upon: $23,490,000.00

4. Length and term of this Agreement: thirty (30) years for each annual
increment of investment in the Project during the Investment Period

5. Investment Period: eight (8) years

6. Assessment ratio applicable for each year of this Agreement: 6%

7. Millage rate applicable for each year of this Agreement: 457.0 mills

8. Schedule showing the amount of the fee and its calculation for each year
of this Agreement: Waived by the County and the Company.

9. Schedule showing the amount to be distributed annually to each of the
affected taxing entities: Waived by the County and the Company.



10. Statements

(a) The Project is to be located in a multi-county industrial or business
park;

(b)  Disposal of property subject to payments-in-lieu-of-taxes is
allowed;

(c) Special Source Revenue Credits will be provided in an amount of
forty percent (40%) of FILOT payments for each year of the Term.

(c) Payment will not be modified using a net present value calculation;
and

(d) Replacement property provisions will apply.

11.  Any other feature or aspect of this Agreement which may affect the
calculation of items (8) and (9) of this summary.
None.

12. Description of the effect upon the schedules required by items (8) and (9)
of this summary of any feature covered by items (10) and (11) not
reflected in the schedules for items (8) and (9): Waived by the County and
the Company.

13. Which party or parties to this Agreement are responsible for updating any
information contained in this summary: The Company.

Section 1.02. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this
Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall have
the following meanings, unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or
intent.

“Aet” or “Simplified FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.

“Administration Expense” shall mean the reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket
expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the County with respect to: (i) the preparation,
review, approval and execution of this Agreement; (ii) the preparation, review, approval and
execution of other documents related to this Agreement and any multi-county park documents;
and (iii) the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and any multi-county park
documents, and in the implementation and administration of the terms and provisions of the
documents after the date of execution thereof.

“Affiliate” shall mean any Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or
under common control with such other Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” means
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of the Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract, or otherwise.



“Agreement” shall mean this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and among the County
and the Company, as originally executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as
permitted herein, and dated as of February 22, 2022.

“Co-Invesror” shall mean the Company, any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within
the meaning of Sections 12-44-30(19) and (20} of the Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of
any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any tenant leasing all or a portion of the Project
from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer in a build-
to-suit arrangement or other leasing arrangement with respect to the Project, any lessor of
equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, and any financing entity or other
third party investing in, providing funds for or otherwise making investment in real or personal
property in connection with the Project. The Company shall notify the County in writing of the
identity of any other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate or other Co-Investor and shall, to the extent the
Company and any such other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other Co-Investor intend to extend
the benefits of the FILOT to property owned by any such Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other
Co-Investor pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof, comply with any additional notice requirements, or
other applicable provisions, of the Act. As of the original execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Company is the only Co-Investor.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the
date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the
Project or any portion thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day
of the property tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the
Company enter into this Agreement.

“Company” shall mean SDKM Commerce, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
and its successors and assigns.

“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(c) hereof.

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns.

“County Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue.

“Economic Development Property” shall mean each item of real and tangible personal
property comprising the Project, except Non-Qualifying Property, if any, within the meaning of
that term as defined and used in Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code.

“Equipmenr” shall mean all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and other personal
property acquired by the Company and installed as part of the Project during the Investment

Period in accordance with this Agreement.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.01 hereof.
7



“Existing Property” shall mean property proscribed from becoming Economic
Development Property pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Code, including, without limitation,
property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall
not include: (i) property acquired or constructed by the Company during the Investment Period
which has not been placed in service in this State prior to the Investment Period notwithstanding
that ad valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property; (if) modifications
which constitute an expansion of Existing Property; or (iii) property described in Section 12-44-
110 of the Code to the extent that the Company and any Co-Investors invest at least an additional
Forty-Five Million Dollars ($45,000,000.00) in the Project.

“FILOT” shall mean the fee-in-lieu of taxes, which the Company are obligated to pay to
the County pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Payments” shall mean the payments to be made by the Company or any Co-
Investor with respect to its respective portion of the Project, whether made as Negotiated FILOT
Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as FILOT payments made pursuant to the Multi-
County Park Act,

“Investment Commitment” shall mean the agreement of the Company and any other Co-
[nvestors to make investments with respect to the Project as set forth in Sections 2.02(d) and 4.01
of this Agreement.

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that Economic
Development Property is purchased or acquired and ending on the date that is eight (8) years
from the Commencement Date (which Investment Period represents a five-year investment
period, plus an additional three (3) years that the County has hereby granted pursuant to the Act).

“Land” shall mean the real estate upon which the Project is to be located, as described in
Exhibit A attached hereto. Additional real estate may be included as part of Exhibit A as
provided in Section 4.03(i), and the Company shall deliver to the County an updated Exhibit A to
reflect such addition.

“Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial/business park established
pursuant to that certain Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business
Park, by and between the County and Hampton County, South Carolina (as amended, modified,
supplemented or replaced from time to time).

“Multi-County Park Act” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto.
“Negotiated FILOT” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof.

“Negotiated FILOT Payment” shall mean the FILOT due pursuant to Section 5.01(b)
hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property.



“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the Project, if any, consisting of: ()
property as to which the Company incurred expenditures prior to the Investment Period or,
except as to Replacement Property, after the end of the Investment Period; (ii) Existing Property;
and (/if) any Released Property or other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated
FILOT Payments, including without limitation property as to which the Company have
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(a)(iii) hereof.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated
organization, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean, collectively herein, the Land and buildings and other improvements
on the Land to the extent placed thereon by or on behalf of the Company or any Co-Investor,
including water, sewer treatment and disposal facilities, and other machinery, apparatus,
equipment, office facilities, and furnishings which are necessary, suitable, or useful, including
the Equipment, and any Replacement Property.

“Project Millage Rate” shall mean a millage rate of 457.0 mills.

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the
Company, or any other Co-Investor, as the case may be.

“Released Property” shall mean any portion of the Project removed, scrapped, traded in,
sold, or otherwise disposed of pursuant to Section 4.03 hereof, any portion of the Project stolen,
damaged, destroyed, or taken by condemnation or eminent domain proceedings as described in
Article VII hereof, and any infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use (within
the meaning of that phrase as used in Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code).

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property installed in or on the Land in
substitution of, or as replacement for, any portion of the Project, but only to the extent that such
property may be included in the calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(c)
hereof and Section 12-44-60 of the Code.

“Special Source Revenue Credits” shall mean the special source credits provided
pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof.

“Sponsor” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Code. As of
the date of this Agreement, the Company is the only Sponsor.

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(20) of the Code.
“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.
“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 10.01 hereof.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.



Section 1.03. References to Agreement. The words “hereof”, “herein”,
“hereunder”, and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole.

ARTICLE 11

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of South Carolina and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act
to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its
obligations hereunder.

(b) The County, based on representations of the Company, has determined
that the Project will serve the purposes of the Act, and has made all other findings of fact
required by the Act in order to designate the Project as Economic Development Property.

(c) By proper action of the County Council, the County has duly authorized
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions necessary and
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the
County.

(e) The County agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to continue
to cause the Land to be located within the Multi-County Park, and the County will take
all reasonable acts to ensure that the Project will continuously be included within the
boundaries of the Multi-County Park or another multi-county park during the Term of
this Agreement in order that the maximum tax benefits afforded by the laws of the State
for projects in the County located within multi-county industrial parks will be available to
the Company.

H No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the County are pending or threatened against or affecting
the County in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company. The Company
makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part

herein contained:

10



(a) The Company is a limited liability company, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of Delaware and authorized to do business in the State; has all
requisite power to enter into this Agreement; and by proper action has been duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement.

(b) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT have been
instrumental in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County and the
State.

(c) Except as otherwise disclosed to the County, no actions, suits,
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the undersigned representatives of the
Company are pending or threatened against or affecting the Company in any court or
before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, which could
materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or which
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

(d)  For the Project, the Company commits to an investment, collectively with
any Co-Investors, of at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand
Dollars ($23,490,000.00) (the “Project Commitment”) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the eight-year Investment Period. The investment amount shall
not include any amount paid by the Company for real estate improvements on the Land
placed in service as of the date of this Agreement. Investments made by the Company
and any Co-Investors in Economic Development Property shall be included in the
determination whether the Company has fulfilled its commitment made in this item to
invest in the Project.

(e) The income tax year of the Company, and accordingly the Property Tax
Year, for federal income tax purposes is a 52/53 week fiscal year ending December 31,

() No event has occurred and no condition currently exists with respect to the
Company, which would constitute a default or an Event of Default as defined herein.

(g)  This Agreement is a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such terms may
be limited by laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

ARTICLE III

UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY

Section 3.01 Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes.

(a) The County hereby agrees to accept FILOT Payments made by the
Company and any Co-Investor in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof in lieu of ad
valorem taxes with respect to the Project until this Agreement expires or is sooner
terminated.

11



(b) The County hereby acknowledges and agrees that, pursuant to Section 12-
43-220(d)(6) of the Act, no Economic Development Property shall be subject to rollback
taxes. The County further covenants, to the extent allowed by law, that any portion of the
Land that has not been developed by the Company (or by any Co-Investors) shall
continue to be assessed using the agricultural assessment ratio until such Land is
developed, so long as such property lawfully qualifies for such assessment ratio.

Section 3.02 No Warranties by County. The Company acknowledges that the
County has made no warranties or representations, either express or implied, as to the condition
or state of the Project or as to the design or capabilities of the Project or that it will be suitable
for the Company’s purposes or needs. No representation of the County is hereby made with
regard to compliance by the Project or any Person with laws regulating: (i) the construction or
acquisition of the Project; (/i) environmental matters pertaining to the Project; (iii) the offer or
sale of any securities; or (iv) the marketability of title to any property.

Section 3.03 Invalidity. The parties acknowledge that the intent of this
Agreement is to afford the Company and any Co-Investors the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT
Payments in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate the Project within the County and
that this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Simplified
FILOT Act. In the event that, for any reason, the Act and/or the Negotiated FILOT or any
portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, declared
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of the Project consisting of Economic
Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act
in whole or in part, the Company and the County express their intentions that such payments be
reformed so as to afford the Company or any Co-Investors benefits commensurate with those
intended under this Agreement as then permitted by law, including without limitation any
benefits afforded under the Code, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal authorization to
effect such reformation, the Company and the County agree that there shall be due hereunder,
with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property affected by such
circumstances, ad valorem taxes and that, to the extent permitted by law, the Company and any
Co-Investors shall be entitled: (/) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or
fees in lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any
other exemption allowed by law; (ii) to enjoy all allowable depreciation; and (iii) to receive other
tax credits which would be due if the Company or any Co-Investor were obligated to pay ad
valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT
Payments hereunder are required by law to be subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall
be due and payable by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County with respect to the portion
of the Economic Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between
the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with, but only if required by law, interest on such
deficiency as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code. The Company agrees that if this
Agreement is reformed as provided in this Section or if retroactive adjustments are made, then
under no circumstances shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the
Company or any Co-Investor.

12



In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, the County shall not be
obligated to perform any of its obligations or promises under this Section 3.03 unless the
Company has otherwise complied with or provides satisfactory evidence to the County that it
intends to comply with its obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement.

Section 3.04 Multi-County Park Status. The County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the Land in the Multi-County Park until the date this
Agreement expires or is terminated. If it becomes necessary to remove the Land from the Multi-
County Park prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to place the Land in another multi-county park established
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and to maintain the multi-county park designation until
the date this Agreement is terminated. The parties acknowledge and agree that the County’s
agreement to place and maintain the Land in a multi-county park may be subject to the exercise
of discretion by a governmental entity other than the County and the exercise of that discretion is
not controlled by the County.

ARTICLE IV
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.01. Investment by Company in Project. For the Project, the Company
agrees to invest, collectively with any Co-Investors, at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred
Ninety Thousand Dollars $23,490,000.00in Economic Development Property by the end of the
Investment Period. Investments made by the Company and any Co-Investors in Economic
Development Property shall be included in any determination whether the Company has fulfilled
its commitments made in this Section.

Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing.

(a) The Company agrees to provide a copy of Form PT-443 filed with the
Department of Revenue to the County Auditor, the County Economic Development
Director, the County Attorney, the County Administrator and the County Assessor of the
County and the County Auditor and the County Assessor of Hampton County, not later
than thirty (30) days after execution and delivery of this Agreement. Each year during
the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the County Auditor, the
County Economic Development Director, the County Attorney, the County Assessor, the
County Administrator and the County Treasurer, a copy of their most recent annual
filings made with the Department of Revenue with respect to the Project, not later than
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department of Revenue. The Company
acknowledges that the terms of the Act provide that to the extent requested, the Jasper
County Auditor shall make such forms and returns available to the County Auditor of
Hampton County. The Company agrees to provide the County with written notice of any
failure to comply with the reporting requirements set forth in this Section.

(b)  The Company agrees to maintain such books and records with respect to
the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project placed in

13



service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of
investment with respect thereto and its computations of all FILOT Payments made
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County
applicable to property subject to FILOT Payments under the Act, including the reports
described in paragraph (a) (collectively, “Filings”).

(c) The County acknowledges and understands that the Company may have
and maintain at the Project certain confidential and proprietary information, including,
but not limited to, trade secrets, financial, sales or other information concerning the
Company’s operations and processes (“Confidential Information”) and that any
disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial harm to the
Company and could have a significant detrimental impact on the Company’s employees
and also upon the County. The Company acknowledges that the County is subject to the
provisions of the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. The County acknowledges
that information the Company may hereafter provide to the County and which is clearly
identified as Confidential Information may be deemed by the Company to be confidential
and proprietary. To the extent that the Company clearly identifies information as
Confidential Information, the County agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such
Confidential Information and will, to the extent permitted by law (including, specifically,
the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act), decline to honor any request for release
of the Confidential Information so designated to persons other than the Company and its
designated officers and representatives. In the event that the County is required by law to
disclose any Confidential Information obtained from the Company to any third party, the
County agrees to provide the Company with prompt advance notice of such requirement
before making such disclosure. In the event an action at law or equity is brought against
the County to require the disclosure of any Confidential Information that the Company
identified as Confidential Information, the County reserves the right to include the
Company in such action, and the Company hereby agrees to bear the reasonable costs
associated with defending the County in such action, including payment of any judgment
against the County for attorneys’ fees or other liabilities related to such action.

Section 4.03. Modification of Project. As long as no Event of Default exists
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

(1) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at its own expense,
add to the Project Land or any real and personal property as the Company or each
other Co-Investor in its discretion deems useful or desirable.

(it) In any instance where the Company or any other Co-Investor, in its
discretion, determines that any items included in the Project have become
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary for
operations at the Project, the Company or such other Co-Investor may remove such
items or portions from the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without the consent of the County; as such
may be permitted under the Simplified FILOT Act.

14



(i11) The Company and any other Co-Investor may, at any time in its
discretion by written notice to the County, remove any real or personal property
from the Negotiated FILOT (as defined in Section 5.01) set forth in this
Agreement, and thereafter such property will be considered Non-Qualifying
Property and will be subject to FILOT Payments as set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof.

ARTICLE V
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Act, the parties hereby agree that, during the Term
of the Agreement, the Company and any Co-Investors shall pay annually, with respect to
the Project, a FILOT in the amount calculated as set forth in this Section, to be collected
and enforced in accordance with Section 12-44-90 of the Act.

(b)  The FILOT Payment due with respect to each Property Tax Year shall
equal:

(1) With respect to any portion of the Project consisting of Non-
Qualifying Property, if any, as long as such property is located in the Multi-County
Park, a payment equal to the ad valorem taxes that would otherwise be due on such
Non-Qualifying Property if it were taxable giving effect to all credits, exemptions,
rebates and abatement that would be available if such undeveloped land or Non-
Qualifying Property were taxable; and

(i1) With respect to those portions of the Project consisting of
Economic Development Property, for each of the thirty (30) consecutive years
following the year in which such portion of the Project is placed in service, a
payment calculated each year as set forth in paragraphs (c) and (d) of this Section

5.01 (a “Negotiated FILOT").

(c)  The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall be calculated with respect to each
Property Tax Year based on: (¢) the fair market value (determined in accordance with
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Code) for (A) any real property component of the
Economic Development Property constructed or purchased in an arm’s length transaction
determined by Department of Revenue using the original income tax basis for South
Carolina income tax purposes without regard to depreciation, otherwise the real property
must be reported at the fair market value for ad valorem property taxes as determined by
appraisal, with the fair market value estimate established for the first year of the
Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to such property remaining the fair market
value of such real property for the entire Term hereof, and (B) the personal property
component of the Economic Development Property determined by Department of
Revenue using the original tax basis for South Carolina income tax purposes less
depreciation allowable for property tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-

15



50(A)(1)(c) of the Code); (i) a fixed millage rate equal to the Project Millage Rate, for
the entire Term of this Agreement; and (ii/) an assessment ratio of 6%. All such
calculations shall take into account all deductions for depreciation or diminution in value
allowed by the Code or by the tax laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would
have been applicable if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the
exemption allowed pursuant to Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State
of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Sections 12-37-220(B)(32)
and (34) of the Code.

(d) Special Source Revenue Credits shall be provided in the amount of forty
percent (40%) of each annual FILOT Payment, for each year of the Term. Such Special
Source Revenue Credits shall be applied automatically and reflected on each year’s
property tax bill provided to the Company.

(e) The FILOT payments are to be recalculated:

(1) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Co-
Investor disposes of any part of the Project within the meaning of Section 12-44-
50(B) of the Code and as provided in Section 4.03 hereof, by the amount
applicable to the Released Property;

(ii) to increase such payments, based on the methodology set forth in
Section 5.01(c) hereof, in the event the Company or any Co-Investor adds property
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project; or

(i)  to adjust such payments if the Company or any Co-Investor elects
to convert any portion of the Project from the Negotiated FILOT to the FILQT
required by Section 5.01(b)(i) above, as permitted by Section 4.03(a)(iii).

(£ To the extent permitted by law, because the FILOT Payments agreed to
herein are intended to be paid by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County in lieu
of taxes, it is agreed that said FILOT Payments shall not, as to any year, be in any amount
greater than what would otherwise be payable by the Company or such Co-Investor to the
County in property taxes if the Company or such Co-Investor had not entered into a fee-
in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the County (except it is not intended that said FILOT
Payments would necessarily be less than such property taxes to the extent that the
constitutional abatement of property taxes would otherwise apply).

(8) Upon the Company’s or any Co-Investor’s installation of any
Replacement Property for any portion of the Project removed under Section 4.03 hereof
and sold, scrapped, or disposed of by the Company or such Co-Investor, such
Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT Payments to the fullest
extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules:

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as
the Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the FILOT, whether real or

16



personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated
FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing. More than one piece of property can
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to
payments equal to the ad valorem taxes which would have been paid on such
property but for this Agreement. Replacement property is entitled to the FILOT
payment for the period of time remaining on the thirty-year FILOT period for the
property which it is replacing.

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the Negotiated
FILOT payment shall be recorded using its income tax basis, and the Negotiated
FILOT Payment shall be calculated using the millage rate and assessment ratio
provided on the original property subject to FILOT payment.

(h) In the event that the Act or the FILOT or any portion thereof, are declared,
by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the Company and the County express
their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company the
maximum benefit then permitted by law, including, without limitation, the benefits
afforded under Section 12-44-50 of the Code and, specifically, that the Company may, at
the Company’s expense, exercise the rights granted by Section 12-44-160 of the Code
upon terms and conditions (including evidence acceptable to the County that the Project
is free from environmental contamination and mutually agreeable environmental
indemnifications and warranties by the Company) acceptable to the County and the
Company. If the Project is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to
the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County agree that the Company shall
pay an alternate fee-in-lieu of tax calculated in the manner set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof. In such event, the Company shall be entitled, to the extent permitted by law: (i)
to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in lieu of taxes) provided
by Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, and any
other exemption allowed by law; and (i) to enjoy all allowable depreciation. The
Company agrees that if the FILOT Payments or this Agreement is reformed pursuant to
this subsection (h), that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or
pay any monies to the Company.

(i) For the Project, this Agreement is automatically terminated in the event
that the investment in the Project in land, buildings, and personal property, including
machinery and equipment, by the Company does not exceed Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) by the end of the Investment Period. If terminated
pursuant to this subsection (i), the Negotiated FILOT Payments shall revert retroactively
to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem taxes would have been with respect to the
property absent this Agreement. At the time of termination, the Company shall pay to the
County an additional fee equal to the difference between the total amount of property

17



taxes that would have been paid by the Company had the project been taxable, taking into
account exemptions from property taxes that would have been available to the Company,
and the total amount of fee payments actually made by the Company. This additional
amount is subject to interest as provided in Section 12-54-25. The Company agrees, if
the Negotiated FILOT Payments revert to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem
taxes would be pursuant to this subsection (i), that under no circumstance shall the
County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company.

)] In the event that the Company fails to meet and maintain the Project
Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period as provided herein
(without regard to any subsequent extensions thereof), the Company shall be obligated to
repay a protated portion of the Special Source Revenue Credits provided under Section
5.01(d) hereof theretofore received by the Company with respect to qualifying property,
and the amount of Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company thereafter
shall be so reduced with such prorated portion to be calculated by determining the
achievement percentage of the Project Commitment as of the last day of the Investment
Period.

For example, and by way of example only, if the Company has invested $19,966,500 as
of the last day of the Investment Period, the Company would have met 85% of the Project
Commitment and would be obliged to repay 15% of the Special Source Revenue Credits
provided under Section 5.01(d) hereof, and the amount of Special Source Revenue
Credits provided to the Company thereafter would be reduced by 15%.

(k)  Unless otherwise provided by the Act, any amounts due to the County
under this Section 5.01 by virtue of the application of Sections 5.01(i) hereof shall be
paid within ninety (90) days, following written notice thereof from the County to the
Company or Co-Investor, as applicable.

)] The Company agrees to make FILOT Payments with respect to the
Economic Development Property that it owns for each Property Tax Year during the term
hereof beginning with the Property Tax Year following the year the applicable Economic
Development Property is first placed in service. The FILOT Payments shall be made to
the Jasper County Treasurer on the due dates which would otherwise be applicable for ad
valorem property taxes for the Economic Development Property, with the first payment
being due on the first date following the delivery of this Agreement when, but for this
Agreement, such taxes would have been paid with respect to the Economic Development
Property.

(m) To the extent required by Section 4-29-68(A)2)(ii) of the Code, if the
Company claims Special Source Revenue Credits as reimbursement for investment in
personal property, including machinery and equipment, if such property is removed from
the Project during the term of this Agreement, the amount of the FILOT Payments due
from the Company on such personal property for the year in which the personal property
was removed from the Project also shall be due for the two (2) years following such
removal.

18



(n) The Company agrees to provide or cause to be provided all funding for the
costs of acquisition, construction, and installation of Infrastructure Improvements (as
defined in the Act) for which reimbursement is being provided by the Special Source
Revenue Credits. In accordance with the Act, such Special Source Revenue Credits shall
not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of the Infrastructure Improvements
funded from time to time by the Company.

(0)  The County and the Company acknowledge and agree that any obligation
which the County may incur for the payment of money as a result of the transactions
described in the herein, including providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, shall
never constitute an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State
constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never create a pecuniary liability
of the County or a charge upon its general credit or against its taxing powers but shall be
payable solely out of the funds received by it under this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
PAYMENTS BY COMPANY

Section 6.01. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make
any of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall
continue as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.
The Company agrees that the collection and enforcement of the defaulted payment shall be as
provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. The Company expressly acknowledges that in the
event of its failure to make the required FILOT Payments when due, that the County is only
required to give notice thereof in accordance with the Section 12-44-90 of the Code, and that no
further notice is required hereunder in order to enforce the remedies set forth in this Section 6.01,
including any notices of default set forth in Article XI hereof. The County’s right to receive
FILOT Payments shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Code
and Chapters 4 and 54 of Title 12 of Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

ARTICLE VII

CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.01. Adjustments_in the Event of Damage and Destruction or
Condemnation. In the event that the Project or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost
or stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, the Company, in its sole discretion, may
determine whether or not to repair or replace the same. The parties hereto agree that if the
Company decides not to repair or replace all or any portion of the Project pursuant to this
Section, the FILOT required pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof shall be abated in the same manner
and in the same proportion as if ad valorem taxes were payable with respect to the Project.

19



ARTICLE VIII

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project for any lawful purpose that is authorized pursuant
to the Act.

Section 8.02. Indemnification. The Company releases the County, including the
members of the governing body of the County, and the employees, officers, attorneys and agents
of the County (herein collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) from, agrees that the
Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold the Indemnified Parties harmless
against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be
occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the Company’s performance of its obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, except for that occasioned by grossly negligent or intentional acts of
an Indemnified Party, or by a breach of this Agreement by the County. The Company further
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnified Parties against and from any and all costs,
liabilities, expenses, and claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in
the performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or arising from any act or negligence of, or negligent
failure to act where there is a duty to do so, by the Company, and from and against all cost,
liability, and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim or action or proceeding
brought thereon.

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County
contained herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and
obligations of the County and not of any member of the County Council or any officer, agent,
attorney, servant, or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity, and, absent bad
faith, no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder or the performance of
any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein contained or for any claims based
thereon against any member of the governing body of the County or any officer, attorney, agent,
servant, or employee of the County.

Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the Indemnified Parties hereto that none
of them shall incur any pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, any related
agreements or the undertakings required of the County hereunder by reason of the performance
of any act requested of the County by the Company, including all claims, liabilities, or losses
arising in connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing,
nevertheless, if any Indemnified Party shall incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event
the Company shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any
Person, firm, or corporation or other legal entity arising out of the same and all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or
proceeding brought thereon, provided, however, that nothing herein shall absolve the
Indemnified Parties from, or entitle the Indemnified Parties to indemnification from, any
obligation such Indemnified Party has specifically agreed to undertake (including, without
limitation, the obligation to place and maintain the Land within a multi-county park). If any
action, suit, or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party to which such Indemnified

20



Party is entitled to indemnification, such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Company,
and the Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense
thereof, at its expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole
discretion; provided the Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle
any such claim unless such claim is for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability
to, and do, pay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the
event the County reasonably believes there are defenses available to it that are not being pursued
or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably determines that a conflict of interest
exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its sole discretion, hire
independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for the
reasonable cost of such counsel.

The indemnity specified in this Section shall be in addition to any heretofore extended by
the Company to any Indemnified Party and shall survive the termination of this Agreement with
respect to liability arising out of any event or act occurring prior to such termination.

Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate,
from time to time, other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections
12-44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and other Co-
Investors and make investments with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of
such investments, who agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who
shall be Affiliates of Company or other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, any tenant leasing all or
a portion of the Project from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or
other Persons described in Section 9.01 hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who
otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the
Simplified FILOT Act are subject to approval in accordance with Section 12-44-130(D) of the
Act. To the extent that the aggregate investment in the Project by the end of the Investment
Period by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeds $5,000,000.00, to the extent permitted by
Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, all investment by such Sponsors and Sponsor
Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of
this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) regardless of whether each such
entity invested amounts equal to the Investment Commitment by the end of the Investment
Period. Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue
with written notice of any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section
8.04 in accordance with Section 12-44-130(C) of the Simplified FILOT Act. The parties agree
that, if any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate ceases to become party to this Agreement, the
Agreement shall continue to remain in effect with respect to any remaining Sponsors or Sponsor
Affiliates.

Section 8.04. Compliance with GASB 77. The Company agrees annually to
prepare Form SC DOR PT-300G (Schedule G — Fee in Lieu of Tax Supplemental) with respect
to the Project, even if the Company is not required to file such form with the Department of
Revenue, and provide a copy to the County not later than June 30 of each year of the Term of
this Agreement in order to assist the County in complying with Statement No. 77 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board known as “GASB 77.” The Company agrees further

21



to cooperate with the County in providing reasonably requested information regarding the
Project in order to assist the County in complying with GASB 77.

ARTICLE IX

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS

Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment. The Company
and any Co-Investor may at any time: (a) assign or transfer all or any of its rights and interests
hereunder or with respect to the Project to any Person; or (b) enter into any lending, financing,
security, or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements with any financing entity
with respect to the Agreement or the Project, including without limitation any sale, leaseback, or
other financing lease arrangement; provided that, in connection with any of the foregoing
transfers: (i) except in connection with any assignment or transfer to any Affiliate of the
Company or such Co-Investor, or transfers pursuant to clause (b) above, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, any assignment or transfer to any entity that assumes from the Company the
purchase agreement with respect to the Land (as to which such transfers the County hereby
consents), the Company or such Co-Investor shall first obtain the prior written approval or
subsequent ratification of the County, in the County’s sole discretion, and evidenced, to the
extent allowed by law, by a Resolution of County Council or a writing signed by an officer of the
County; (i) the Company or the applicable Co-Investor, transferee, or financing entity shall,
within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department
of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (iii) the Company or
the applicable Co-Investor and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the
Transfer Provisions.

The Company acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest under this Agreement or in
the Project may cause the Project to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in
penalties under the Act absent compliance by the Company with the Transfer Provisions.

Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as_Secured
Parties. The parties acknowledge the application of the provisions of Section 12-44-90 of the
Act, and that the County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall be the same as its
rights conferred under Title 12, Chapter 49 and 54, among others, of the Code relating to the
collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes.

ARTICLE X

TERM; TERMINATION

Section 10.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and
provisions herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a
term commencing on the date on which the Company executes this Agreement, and ending at
midnight on the last day of the Property Tax Year in which the last Negotiated FILOT Payment
is due hereunder. This Agreement has a term of thirty (30) years, as calculated pursuant to the
respective dates when the relevant portions of the Project are placed in service, and as discussed
in greater detail in this Agreement. The County’s rights to receive indemnification and payment

22



of Administration Expenses pursuant hereto shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

Section 10.02, Termination.

(a) The County and the Company may agree to terminate this Agreement at
any time, or the Company may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time upon
providing the County thirty (30) days’ notice of such termination, in which event the
Project shall be subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. In the event
that this Agreement is terminated by the operation of this Section 10.02 at any time
during the initial Investment Period prior to the Company’s investment of at least Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in the Project, amounts due to
the County as a result thereof shall be calculated as provided in Section 5.01(i) hereof
The County’s rights to receive payment for such ad valorem taxes and its rights to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement.

(b) This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-
44-140(B) of the Act in the event the investment requirements at the Project set forth in
Section 12-44-140(B) of the Act are not satisfied.

(c) The FILOT incentive with respect to any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate will
automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-44-140(C) of the Act in the event such
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate no longer has the statutory minimum level of investment at
the Project.

(d)  This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event the
Company or any other Co-Investor removes real or personal property from the
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(iii) hereof (with such termination effective
solely with respect to such removed property).

(e) This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section
5.01(i) hereof.

(f) This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event of casualty
or condemnation at the Project and the FILOT is abated pursuant to Section 7.01 hereof
(with such termination effective solely with respect to the property subject to such
casualty or condemnation).

23



ARTICLE XI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events of Default by Company.

(a) Any one or more of the following events (herein called an “Event of
Default”, or collectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute an Event of Default (but
solely with respect to the defaulting entity):

(1) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any FILOT
Payments,

(2)  if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any
indemnification payments or Administration Expenses, which default shall not
have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof
from the County;

3) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or
compliance with any of the terms hereof, including payment, other than those
referred to in the foregoing paragraphs (1) and (2), and such default shall continue
for sixty (60) days after the County shall have given the Company written notice
of such default, provided, the Company shall have such longer period of time as
necessary to cure such default if the Company proceeds promptly to cure such
default and thereafter to prosecute the curing of such default with due diligence;
and provided further, that no Event of Default shall exist under this paragraph (3)
during any period when there is pending, before any judicial or administrative
tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the Company has contested
the occurrence of such default.

{4) if any material representation or warranty on the part of the Company or
any Co-Investor made herein (including representations regarding the capital
investment resulting from the Project), or in any report, certificate, financial or
other statement furnished in connection with this Agreement or the transactions
described in this Agreement shall have been false or misleading in any material
respect.

(b)  The failure of the Company or any other Co-Investor to meet the
Investment Commitment as set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default
under this Agreement, and the County’s sole recourse for failure to meet the Investment
Requirement shall be as set forth in Section 5.01 hereof.

Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence
and continuance of any Event of Default by Company (and the expiration of any applicable cure
periods), the County may exercise any of the following remedies, any of which may be exercised
at any time during the periods permitted under the following clauses:

24



(a) terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not
less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified therein; or

(b)  take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to enforce
observance or performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement of the Company
under this Agreement.

Section 11.03. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
including without limitation, a suit for mandamus or specific performance.

Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any
warranty, covenant, or agreement contained in this Agreement should be breached by the
Company or the County and thereafter waived by the other party to this Agreement, such waiver
shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
breach.

Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Co-Investor or

Sponsor Affiliate, if the County employs attorneys or incurs other reasonable expenses for the
collection of payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of
any obligation or agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand
therefor, to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable
expenses so incurred.

ARTICLE XII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. Each right, power, and remedy
of the County or of the Company or any other Co-Investor provided for in this Agreement shall
be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power or remedy
provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any
jurisdiction where such rights, powers and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise
by the County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any one or more of the rights,
powers or remedies provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the
County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any or all such other rights, powers or
remedies.

Section 12.02. Successors_and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.

25



Section 12.03. Administration Expenses. The Company agrees to reimburse the
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request
therefore, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after receiving the written request from the
County. The written request shall include a description of the nature of the Administration
Expenses. The Administration Expenses reimbursable to the County pursuant to this Agreement
for the initial drafting and negotiation of this Agreement and related documentation shall not
exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).

Section 12.04 Rules of Construction. The County and the Company
acknowledge and agree that each has been represented by legal counsel of its choice throughout
the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, that each has participated in the drafting hereof
and that this Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either party solely on the
basis of such party’s drafting or participation in the drafting of any portion of this Agreement.

Section 12.05. Notices: Demands: Requests. All notices, demands and requests
to be given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall
be deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid
or via facsimile or other commonly-used electronic transmission or reputable courier service,
addressed as follows or to such other persons and places as may be designated in writing by such

party.
(a) As to the County:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Administrator
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Attorney
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

(b)  Asto the Company:

SDKM Commerce, LLC

¢/o Clarius Partners, LLC

Attn: Craig Dannegger

200 W, Madison St., Suite 1625
Chicago, Illinots 60606

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP
Attn: Ms. Stephanie L. Yarbrough

26



5 Exchange Street
Charleston, South Carolina 29401

Section 12.06. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Section 12.07. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is
not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the
execution and delivery hereof.

Section 12.08. Severability. In the event that any clause or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement
are references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement.

Section 12.10. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Section 12.11. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Act, this
Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the parties hereunder surrendered, only
by a writing signed by all parties. The County agrees that, to the extent allowed by law, such
amendment may be approved by a Resolution of County Council.

Section 12.12. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party
with any term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 12.13. Force Majeure. Except with respect to (i) the obligation to invest
at least Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the Investment Period; and (ii) the payment obligations with respect to
FILOT Payments, the Administrative Expenses and indemnification of the Indemnified Parties
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investors shall not be responsible for any delays or non-
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight
embargoes, labor shortages, fire, floods, inability to obtain materials, war or national emergency,
acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company’s reasonable
control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

27



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has
caused this Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Council Chair and to be
attested by the Clerk to Council; and the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by
its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:
Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
SDKM COMMERCE, LLC
By:
Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to FILOT Agreement]



EXHIBIT A
Land

Lot 13, 26.48 Acres
A Section of Parcel C — West Parcel
A Portion of Hardeeville Commerce Park
City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being in

the City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

as shown on that certain survey prepared by Surveying Consultants,

by Terry G. Hatchell, S.C.R.L.S. No. 11059,

Entitled “A Minor Subdivision Survey of Lot 13, Parcel C — West North Parcel &
Parcel C — West South Parcel, City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina”,
Dated: 07/06/2021,

and being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a point marked by a 3” Concrete Monument (Found) at the intersection of the
Southern Right-of-Way of Paynesville Road (aka State Road S-27-156) and the

Western Right-of-Way of Mockingbird Drive,

said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 162,050.840 E. 1,973,462.190

said point being the Point of Commencing,

From the Point of Commencing in a Westerly direction as follows:

Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 174.82 to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),
Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 14.10° to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),

Thence S 01°08'38" W A Distance Of 350.23” to a 1/2” Iron Pipe (Found),
Thence S 01°11'16" W A Distance Of 511.18’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 135.95° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 65°13'59" W A Distance Of 67.44° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 00°33'04" W A Distance Of 218.99° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 120.87’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 89°35'35" W A Distance Of 47.03° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 497.01°,

a Radius of 420.61°, a Tangent of 188.30°, a Chord Length of 354.73°,

a Chord Bearing of S 66°17'22" W, and a Delta Angle of 48°14'06"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 160,673.440 E. 1,972,869.061
Said point being the Point of Beginning,

From the Point of Beginning in a Southerly direction as follows:

Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 297.94’,
a Radius of 420.61°, a Tangent of 155.53°, a Chord Length of 291.75’,



a Chord Bearing of S 21°52'45" W, and a Delta Angle of 40°35'10"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),

Thence S 01°35'10" W A Distance Of 717.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 103.39,

a Radius of 350.00°, a Tangent of 52.08°, a Chord Length of 103.02°,

a Chord Bearing of S 06°52'37" E, and a Delta Angle of 16°55'33"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),

Thence S 15°2024" E A Distance Of 137.38' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence along a Curve to the right having an Arc Length of 47.24°,

a Radius of 250.00°, a Tangent of 23.69°, a Chord Length of 47.12°,

a Chord Bearing of S 09°55'34" E, and a Delta Angle of 10°49'39"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),

Thence S 04°30'45" E A Distance Of 14.42' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 85°58'12" W A Distance Of 314.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 63°44'29" W A Distance Of 145.19' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Thence N 57°59'41" W A Distance Of 180.16' to a 1/2” [ron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 30°57'50" W A Distance Of 121.48' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 31°40'51" W A Distance Of 875.96' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 32°42'55" E A Distance Of 489.04' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Thence S 88°48'35" W A Distance Of 699.36' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence S 57°17'78" W A Distance Of 268.58' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point being the Point of Beginning,
Said lot having an area of 26.48 Acres, more or less



